
 

 

 

Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA 
Prif Weithredwr, 
Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP 
 

 
 

 
 
MONDAY 3RD OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE EDUCATION & CHILDREN 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WHICH WILL 

BE HELD IN THE CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 

10:00AM ON MONDAY 10
TH

 OCTOBER 2016, FOR THE 

TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE 

ATTACHED AGENDA. 

 
 
 
 

Mark James 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
  
 

PLEASE RECYCLE 
 
 

Democratic Officer: Matthew Hughes 

Telephone (Direct Line): 01267 224029  

Fax: 01267 224911 

E-Mail: mahughes@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

Ref: AD016-001 

 

Document Pack



 

 
 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

13 COUNCIL MEMBERS, 2 NON-ELECTED VOTING MEMBERS AND 3 

ELECTED VOTING PARENT GOVERNOR MEMBERS 
 
 
 
PLAID CYMRU GROUP – 6 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor C.A. Campbell 
2. Councillor J.M. Charles 
3. Councillor W.G. Hopkins 
4. Councillor P. Hughes Griffiths 
5. Councillor M.J.A. Lewis 
6. Councillor J.E. Williams (Chair) 
   
   
INDEPENDENT GROUP – 3 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor I.W. Davies 
2. Councillor D.W.H. Richards 
3. Councillor VACANCY 
   
   
LABOUR  GROUP – 4 MEMBERS 
   
1. Councillor D.J.R. Bartlett (Vice-Chair) 
2. Councillor J.D. James 
3. Councillor P.E.M. Jones 
4. Councillor J. Williams  
   
   
NON ELECTED VOTING MEMBERS (2) 
 
1. Mrs. V. Kenny Roman Catholic Church Representative  
2. Canon B. Witt Church in Wales Representative  
   
   
ELECTED VOTING PARENT GOVERNOR MEMBERS (3)  
Term of office expires on the 31/03/2018 
 
1. Mrs. E. Heyes Area 3 – Llanelli  
2. Mrs. K. Hill  Area 1 – Dinefwr  
3. Mrs. A. Pickles  Area 2 – Carmarthen  

 



 

 

AGENDA   
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS  
 

 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED)  
 

 

5. FORTHCOMING ITEMS  
 

5 - 6 

6. TIC PROJECT UPDATE  

 

7 - 10 

7. ERW BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17  
 

11 - 146 

8. SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PANEL  
 

147 - 158 

9. EDUCATION & CHILDREN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
SCHOOL VISIT ACTIVITY REPORT 2015/16  

159 - 198 

 

 
 

 

 

Please note: Reports are only printed in black and white to reduce costs. 
All reports however are available on-line so that members of the Committee 
/ County Council and the public can view tables, graphs and photographs in 
colour. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

Forthcoming items for next meeting –  
Monday 21st November 2016  

 
 

 
Discussion Topic 
 

 
Background 

 
Task & Finish Group 
Final Report – Attainment 
Gap and eFSM Learners  
 

 
The Committee established a task and finish group in 2015 
in order to investigate the attainment gap between those 
learners who are eligible for free school meals and those 
who are not. This item will provide the Committee with an 
opportunity to consider the Group’s findings and 
recommendations.  
 

 
Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) Reform –  
A Carmarthenshire 
response 
 

 
This item will provide the Committee with an opportunity to 
comment and make recommendations in relation to 
Carmarthenshire’s response to the reform of Additional 
Learning Needs provision. New legislation is expected 
during 2016/17.   
 

 
Behaviour Services 
Review 
 

 
This item will provide the Committee with an opportunity to 
comment and make recommendations in relation to the 
review of Behaviour Services.  
 

 
Budget Monitoring 
2016/17  

 
This is a standard quarterly item which enables members to 
undertake their monitoring role of revenue and capital 
budgets in relation to the Education & Children Department. 
 

 
Actions & Referrals 
Update 
 

 
This quarterly report provides an update on progress made 
in relation to actions and requests from previous meetings. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

Transform, Innovate & Change (TIC)  
Programme Update  

 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• To consider and comment on the TIC Programme update and the specific projects 
supported by the TIC Team in services within the Committee’s remit.   

 

Reasons:  
 

• This item provides an opportunity to reflect on the work of the TIC Programme over the 
last year and to report on outcomes achieved thus far in services within the 
Committee’s remit. 
   

• Relevant updates will be provided at the other scrutiny committees during the autumn.  
 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: NO  
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr. Mair Stephens (Human Resources, Efficiencies & Collaboration) 
 

 
 
Directorate: 
Communities  
 
Name of Head of Service: 
Robin Staines  
 
 
 
Report Author: 
Jon Owen  
 
 

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
Head of Housing & Public 
Protection (TIC Head of Service 
Lead) 
 
 
TIC Programme Manager 
 

 
Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 222960 
rstaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
 
01267 224522 
jowen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
  

 
  

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

Transform, Innovate & Change (TIC)  
Programme Update  

  

 

 
The ‘Transform, Innovate and Change’ programme was launched in response to the 
significant financial challenges being faced by the Council. A dedicated team has been 
established to support a programme of radical and transformational change across the 
Council, and to seek opportunities to drive out waste and inefficiency by delivering more 
purposeful services.  
 
The benefits of the TIC approach are being realised as many of the projects have 
started to deliver significant improvements in terms of service quality, customer 
experience and financial efficiencies. To date, the TIC approach has assisted in 
identifying or is helping to deliver approximately £6.4m of efficiency savings. 
 
A short presentation will be provided at the meeting with examples of projects that the 
Team has supported in services that are within the Committee’s remit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 

 
NO 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 8



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:   Robin Staines         Head of Housing & Public Protection (TIC Head of Service Lead) 
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE YES  NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 

 
3. Finance – The benefits of the TIC approach are being realised as many of the 
projects have started to deliver significant improvements in terms of service quality, 
customer experience and financial efficiencies.  To date, the TIC approach has assisted 
in identifying, or is helping to deliver, approximately £6.4m of efficiency savings.   
     

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
 
Signed:   Robin Staines         Head of Housing & Public Protection (TIC Head of Service Lead) 
 

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

 
Transform, Innovate & Change 
(TIC) Programme Annual 
Report 2015/16 and Business 
Plan 2016/17 (Policy & 
Resources Scrutiny Committee 
– 14th July 2016)  

 
Summary: 
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s7388/Summ
ary.pdf  
 
Report: 
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s7385/Report.
pdf   
 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

ERW Business Plan 2016/19 
 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 
That the Committee considers and comments on: 
 

• ERW’s functions 

• The continuation of the statutory responsibilities within each local authority 

• Collaborative working across the region and an update on the ERW Business Plan  
 

Reasons:  
 

• To enable the Committee to have a better understanding of the National Model and 
progress against priorities.  
 

• To enable members to exercise their scrutiny role in relation to monitoring ERW’s 
performance. 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Gareth Jones (Education & Children)  
 

 
 
Directorate: 
Education & Children  
 
Name of Head of Service:  
Gareth Morgans 
 
 
Report Author:  
Betsan O’Connor 
 

 
Designations:  
 
 
 
Chief Education Officer 
 
 
 
Managing Director of ERW  

 
Tel Nod. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 246450 
edgmorgans@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 676840 
betsan.oconnor@erw.org.uk    
 

  

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

ERW Business Plan 2016/19 
 

 

 
Mae pedair blaenoriaeth y cynllun: 
 
1. Dysgu Arwain 
 
2. Addysgu a Dysgu 
 
3. Cefnogaeth ar gyfer Dysgu 
 
4. Gwelliant mewnol 
 
Caiff y gwaith ei gyflwyno mewn un ar 
bymtheg o ffrydiau gwaith. 
 
Mae’r cynllun yn cydweddu â chynlluniau 
mewnol pob awdurdod lleol yn dda. Mae 
dangosfwrdd canlyniadau ar gyfer pob 
blaenoriaeth. 

The plan has four priorities: 
 
1. Leading Learning 

 
2. Teaching and Learning  
 
3. Support for Learning  

 
4. Internal Improvement Priorities 
 
The work is delivered in sixteen work 
streams.   
 
The plan dovetails with each local 
authority’s internal plans well. There is an 
outcomes dashboard for each priority. 
 

 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
YES – ERW Regional Business Plan 2016-19   
 

 
  

Page 12



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
 
Signed:  Gareth Morgans              Chief Education Officer      
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
 
Signed:  Gareth Morgans              Chief Education Officer      
 

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – Betsan O’Connor (Managing Director of ERW) / Andi Morgan 
(Head of School Effectiveness)   
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

 
Cynlluniau Busnes ERW 
 
ERW Business Plans  

 
Cymraeg  
http://www.erw.cymru/cynlluniau-a-strategaethau/cynlluniau-busnes/ 
 
English 
http://www.erw.wales/plans-and-strategies/business-plans 
 

 
A report on the quality of 
the school improvement 
services provided by the 
ERW Consortium – 
ESTYN, June 2016 
 

 
Cymraeg  
https://www.estyn.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/documents/ERW%20Cy_0.pdf 
 
English  
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/sites/default/files/documents/ERW%20Eng.pdf 
 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  

 

Business Plan  
2016 – 2019  

 

Page 15



 

 

2 

This is a live document and may be amended as required to meet our priorities.  Specifically, there will 

be annual updates; quarterly financial updates; and progress updates against actions. 

 

  

Page 16



 

 

3 

CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Foreword 

Introduction   

Vision        

Mission statement             

Governance 
 

 Planning and accountability structure 

 Democratic accountability framework 

 Organisational Design 

 Risk Register 

 Value for Money Framework  

 Roles and responsibilities        

Priorities for 2016 – 2019  

        

 Leading learning 

 Teaching and learning 

 Support for learning 

Internal Improvement Priorities  

 

Outcomes 
 

Data dashboards  

Success criteria  

Annex 
 

1. Glossary  

2. Quality Calendar  

3. Annual Overview 

4. Finance      

5. Categorisation Overview       

6. Performance Data        

Page 17



 

 

4 

The Foreword by the Joint Committee sets out the commitment of ERW to delivering its Business Plan 

2016 – 2019 

As a Joint Committee, we fully support the priorities and actions noted in this document.  We 

recognise the contribution of school leaders and teachers across the region in sustaining and 

improving outcomes for learners. 

We recognise that we will have to continue to make difficult decisions regionally and locally in order 

to implement some of the high aspirations. Following our steady but sustainable improvements 

over the last two years, we feel that we have a strong, motivated and dextrous team across the 

region ready to empower learners to achieve the best they can.  

We know that our best performing schools are continuing to improve. As we work to strengthen 

the resilience of all schools and the capacity for self-improvement within schools, we are building a 

self-improving system and creating the climate for further collaboration and cooperation between 

schools.  

We will support leadership at all levels within schools and develop further expertise and capacity 

where and when it is required. As a region, we will enable and encourage schools to collaborate 

effectively. In order that school improvement and pupil performance is sustained and improved.  

We are committed to collaboration with other regions. This past year we are proud of the work we 

have done jointly on the verification of teacher assessment, EIG and categorisation.  

We are eager to be at the forefront of change. These next three years will be exciting and innovative 

for education as we implement significant curricular changes and our school staff will need to be 

dextrous and skilled to respond to the challenges of implementation. 

We know that we must continue to improve in- school variation, enhance digital competence and 

deliver a consistently high quality menu of support to schools. 

As members of the Joint Committee and representing our respective Local authorities, we the 

undersigned endorse this plan as a joint statement of intent for the coming three years. 

Councillor Ali Thomas, Leader,  

Chair of Joint Committee  
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council  Electronic signatures 

Councillor Ellen ap Gwynn, Leader,  

Vice Chair of Joint Committee  
Ceredigion County Council  Electronic signatures 

Councillor Emlyn Dole, Leader Carmarthenshire County Council  Electronic signatures 

Councillor Jamie Adams, Leader Pembrokeshire County Council  Electronic signatures 

Councillor Barry Thomas, Leader Powys County Council  Electronic signatures 

Councillor Rob Stewart, Leader  City and County of Swansea  Electronic signatures 

 

Page 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page is intentionally left blank] 

Page 19



 

 

5 

INTRODUCTION  

 

 

This section introduces the region and outlines ERW’s vision for improvement.  It 

shares the regional mission statement and explains how it will enhance and develop 

the National Model of School Improvement, deliver the Minister’s priorities in 

Qualified for Life:   

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/allsectorpolicies/qualified-for-life-an-

educational-improvement-plan/?lang=en   

National Model: http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/140217-national-

model-for-regional-working-en.pdf and our own Strategy      

This model of regional strategy delivered through the three hubs has been 

successfully trialled and strengthened to ensure effective delivery across the large 

geographical area, and the full diverse range of schools that mirrors the Welsh 

scenario and the bilingual nature of the region. 

 

 

 

  

Page 20



 

 

6 

ERW 

ERW is a single integrated regional professional school effectiveness service driving school 

improvement and learner achievement across the combined area of six local authorities in the 

South West and Mid Wales region within three hubs:-  

· Carmarthenshire / Pembrokeshire  

· Ceredigion / Powys 

· Neath Port Talbot / Swansea 

The ERW strategy sets the following expectations and challenges: 

· ensure effective performance in all schools 

· robustly and consistently challenging the performance of schools and the outcomes achieved by 

learners 

· deploy a differentiated system of professional support to schools in proportion to need through 

nationally agreed categorisation framework 

· supporting strategies to develop the literacy and numeracy skills of learners  

· to improve outcomes for disadvantaged learners 

· facilitate effective school to school support in order to improve performance and outcomes 

· managing and deploying well trained challenge advisers to challenge performance and broker 

bespoke support  

Vision   

 

 “consistently high performing school network across the region 

with every school a good school offering high standards of 

teaching under good leadership resulting in all learners achieving 

their maximum potential” 
 

ERW’s vision is for a consistently high performing school network across the region with every 

school a good school offering high standards of teaching under good leadership resulting in all 

learners achieving their maximum potential. In order to achieve this vision, we will build school 

capacity through support, challenge and intervention to become self-improving, resilient 

organisations which continually improve outcomes for all learners. 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

 

7 

 Mission Statement  

ERW’s mission is to: 

 

“build school capacity through support, challenge and 

intervention to become self-improving, resilient organisations 

which continually improve outcomes for learners” 

 
through ensuring effective performance in all schools across the region by: 

· robustly and consistently challenging the performance schools and the outcomes achieved 

by all their learners 
 

· deploying a differentiated system of professional support to schools in proportion to need 

that is identified through a nationally agreed assessment and categorisation framework 

applied consistently across the region 
 

· supporting the deployment of national and regional strategies to develop the literacy and 

numeracy and digital skills of learners and to improve outcomes for disadvantaged learners 
 

· facilitating and developing effective school to school support in order to improve 

performance and outcomes through the deployment of experienced and successful lead 

practitioners 
 

· managing and deploying well trained challenge advisers across the region and within the 

hubs to challenge performance and signpost appropriate relevant support 
 

· triggering formal interventions in schools that fail to perform to the required standard  
 

· building capacity and resilience within schools so that we will enable a self-improving 

system within the region  

 

 Developing and delivering the National Model of School Improvement in ERW 

The region is committed to working within the co-constructed National Model, and to respond to the 

most recent amendments.  

Our collaboration locally within education services across six local authorities over the last five years has 

led to significant improvements in our way of working and the development of the hub arrangement 

delivering regional and national priorities is having significant positive impact.  The region wants to further 

maximise our collaborative advantage in order to make the best use of our resources to influence learner 

outcomes. 

Strengthening our governance arrangements and challenging each other at local authority level have been 

key characteristics of our work during the last few years. This robust discussion means that we have come 

Page 22



 

 

8 

to a consensus on the future goals and arrangements. All stakeholders are aware of what their 

contribution has to be to show continued improvements regionally. All stakeholders recognise 

our development journey and can see visible improvements. 

An improved digital infrastructure within which to work has made our work increasingly efficient. The 

detailed use of data and its analysis is enabling us to better target and impact on outcomes. Our evidence 

clearly demonstrates the impact of multi-agency working on attendance and outcomes in all key stages 

and post-16. This is clearly articulated in our regional strategy. We will this year strengthen the 

infrastructure regionally to share information more easily so that our analysis of the bespoke needs of 

schools are better captured and planned for. This will enable us to drive better collaboration between 

schools and to enable schools to undertake some functions that traditionally would have been centrally 

led and delivered.  Using Welsh Government’s Hwb infrastructure to enable schools to better engage with 

us is part of our strategy. 

However, despite having regional KS4 outcomes above the Welsh average for over five years, we 

recognise that the pace of improvement on the most significant indicators at all key stages is not 

consistent across the region and therefore not good enough. The support and intervention we have been 

able to give each other within and across local authorities has enabled us as a region to have no LA in 

follow up. This way of working is having a very positive effect with significant improvements made. As 

these Local Authorities improve their services, the Hub’s capacity to deliver the regional and national 

priorities increases.   Now that we have no LA in follow-up, we can focus on key improvements which aim 

to eliminate remaining inter-local authority variation in outcomes. 

Our own self-evaluation tells us that we have become more rigorous and 

robust in the implementation of the school categorisation system. The 

arrangements for our core visits in the Autumn and Spring are clearer and more consistently delivered. 

Our knowledge of schools is more consistent across the region and as a consequence we are able to 

provide better quality and better focused support, challenge and intervention earlier in schools that 

demonstrate underperformance and with greater impact. Schools tell us that the support is better 

focused and targeted to need. We will also focus on rewarding our best teachers whilst tackling 

underperformance so that learners get good teaching every day. Supporting teachers will be a 

key priority for us, using our capacity to give useful tools and resources to 

teachers, so that they can better focus on learner needs. This is especially 

important as we tackle the link between poverty and educational attainment, 

and focus on supporting boys to benefit consistently from a good quality 

education system. 

We will continue to work productively with external partners to bring about improvement. We are 

working well with higher education partners to support improvement in initial teacher training and early 

support for teachers in their careers. Our partnership with the University of Wales Trinity St David is 

already overcoming some sectoral boundaries previously hindering effective transition between the 

Page 23



 

 

9 

student experience and the classroom. We are dovetailing resources and avoiding 

unnecessary duplication so that schools get resources that are helpful in a 

timely way. Successful actions and initiatives that bring about improvement are shared across Wales 

and other regions so that further improvement can be sought by sharing and working with others. 

 Regional Priorities and National Priorities 

ERW is confident in tackling identified challenges and building on our strengths. This requires prioritising 

the most important aspects of our work and targeting the necessary support to both schools and learners 

in a timely way. Responding proactively to the objectives set out in Qualified for Life1 and the curricular 

changes ahead post Donaldson will require a significant focus on workforce support and development. 

The New Deal and the Furlong recommendations are welcomed. These key drivers of education in Wales 

currently, reflect well the direction in which ERW has been steered in recent years. As a region we are 

strengthening existing partnerships with higher education and supporting school staff to rebuild 

confidence and morale whilst re-skilling for a digital future. 

 

The self-improving system for education will require these strategic partnerships to work together 

creatively so that the system shapes its own dextrous workforce. We are already working with other 

regions and ADEW to shape a national narrative and system to help ourselves.  Already our workforce 

research is informing the way we plan to support teachers through the New Deal. 

Raising standards of teaching for all will be a key priority for the region. We strive for every teacher to be 

a good teacher over time, and for pupils to receive good or better teaching every day in every lesson.  

“The quality of teaching in a school has a direct impact on the standards that pupils 

achieve.  It is the single most important factor in helping pupils to achieve their 

potential.”   

Estyn Annual Report 2013-14 

We therefore need to consistently and with a common approach recognise and reward the increasing 

excellence by some teachers, as well as tackle underperformance, across our six local authorities. The 

proportion of adequate or unsatisfactory teaching is increasing at a quicker pace than the proportion of 

excellent teaching.  This means that we must tackle this issue now. Estyn also reports that ‘improving 

teaching’ is one of the most common recommendations in school inspections. In ERW the percentage of 

schools with this as a recommendation is nearly 10%. This is an important aspect for us to consider, even 

in good or better schools, where inter department and inter school variation affect the standards of 

teaching.  

Supporting and delivering the Minister’s New Deal to support teachers and school leaders will dovetail 

with our work on improving teaching. ERW will support teachers to strive for excellence and support 

                                                           
1 http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/141001-qualified-for-life-en.pdf 

Page 24



 

 

10 

teachers with new areas of work and curricular changes. We know that most of our teachers are good, 

and teach well consistently. We must support teachers to being consistently good and better. 

We are committed to leading a changing climate in education, in light of the 

Donaldson review of the curriculum and as the role of technology in pedagogy 

becomes increasingly essential. Raising our digital competency across all 

areas of delivery is key to more efficient and effective working.    

We will work to demonstrate improved use of skills in line with the requirements of the new GCSEs and 

PISA.  We will engage with schools through EIG funded programmes to prioritise and focus our work in 

the right areas.  

Building our capacity to lead the most effective departments and subject areas will mean additional 

support where we have identified areas for development. The changes to science for example will lead to 

a retraining programme in some schools, making sure all staff have the skills for future curriculum delivery. 

As a region, we need to capitalise on the current infrastructure for digital learning as means of engaging 

pupils and teachers in learning opportunities. We will work on maximising our use of the technology and 

skills available to enhance pedagogy and school improvement. 

This year we accelerated the pace of improvement for e-fsm learners significantly. Nevertheless, we also 

recognise the need to improve the attainment of specific groups of learners. For those in receipt of FSM 

we will support schools to make best and targeted use of the additional resources for these pupils.  In 

addition, we will encourage schools where interventions to reduce 

the impact of poverty on educational outcome are working well, and 

capitalise on their experiences to support others. We also aim to 

raise standards and tackle risk of underachievement for pupils from 

ethnic minority backgrounds in particular those learning English (and 

/or Welsh) as an additional language (EAL). Specialist advice, support, guidance, 

continuing professional development and training is a pivotal element of this work to make sure that 

pupils from ethnic minority backgrounds are:  fully included and happy in school; attend school regularly; 

have their language and learning needs appropriately assessed and met; achieve within the National 

Curriculum (NC) at levels in line with their starting point/fluency in English; and achieve their individual 

academic potential. This means that we need to make sure that all schools know their pupils well, and 

support them accordingly.  

Regionally, the teaching and learning of boys needs attention. Currently performance is slightly weaker 

than that of other regions. A clear analysis is required as well as a focus on successful strategies. Already 

we have established priorities to make sure that our resource development takes full account of their 

needs and that we can build on schools’ best practice.  Our evaluation of successful strategies tells us that 

differentiation in teaching is variable and that we need to focus on improving this so that all learners 

Page 25



 

 

11 

perform well.  Our more able and talented pupils do not consistently gain access to the right support to 

enable this to flourish.  

Supporting the development of Welsh medium education with appropriate access to bespoke data 

analysis for core visits and high quality resources at all key stages will be a priority early in the year. This 

will enable our teachers to have improved access and consistent access to resources they need to support 

learners.  

Our role in fully embedding the LNF across all key stages in welcomed and will be planned in line with the 

work already underway at a regional level. Securing a good foundation for learners in the Foundation 

Phase to build the literacy and numeracy skills will be prioritised.   We know that our work in this area has 

impacted on engagement of pupils in learning and raised aspirations. 

Annually, towards the end of May 2016, ERW will refresh its self-evaluation report. This takes account of 

the recommendations from key reviews and the useful feedback from inspection, audit and regulatory 

bodies as well as the findings of our own quality cycle and data analysis. 

From September 2015, we will formally implement our regional strategy for 

a self-improving system, building on work underway to strengthen 

interschool support and school to school work. This will signify a key step 

forward in the region’s work towards a self-improving system.  

Sustained planning and improvement over three years is a goal which we aim to deliver in the second part 

of the plan. This section outlines the internal and organisational ways that ERW must strengthen 

accountability, communication, systems and processes to enable greater efficiency and yield to learner 

outcomes. Identifying how we deliver value for money in improving learner outcomes is key to a 

successful partnership with schools and others. 

Qualified for Life also sets out key challenges, they are increasingly relevant as we respond positively to 

Furlong and Donaldson’s recommendations. In ERW, those national challenges are also relevant and we 

have responded positively too many already. Regionally, our arrangements for moderating and 

standardising teachers’ assessments are good and have been shared nationally. Our steps to secure robust 

support for the workforce in schools as they manage significant change is moving ahead. 

The Minister set out clearly his vision for Wales in Qualified for life, and ERW notes in this document how 

we will support and engage in the implementation of key government policies. We want to 

support our regional workforce, to regain confidence in teaching as 

a profession through effective support and challenge; we want to 

build leadership capacity from the inside out and work together to 

capitalise on the region’s strengths to share this together; we seek a 

Page 26



 

 

12 

rich curriculum with valued outcomes for all. This picture will change, as we await 

the Minister’s response to recent reviews, we are committed to change for improvement.  

Implementation 

The Business Plan will highlight and take action to mitigate pressures, national and local priorities, risks 

and areas for development. Key strengths and effective practice will be built 

upon. 

This diagram below illustrates some of the competing pressures, changes and challenges on the regional 

school improvement system. Our internal organisational improvement priorities are focused on 

consistency, communication and securing value for money whist raising standards for learners. This year 

we will focus on using our increased capacity for communications and marketing to make sure that our 

messages of support, improvement and strategy are focused and consistently clear.  

The collaborative climate re-emphasised in the Future Generation Act supports ERW’s approach to 

strong partnerships.  Our governance and delivery model is about strengthening partnerships.  Genuine 

co-operation from Welsh Government will enable us to be more effective in delivering key priorities. 

We have worked well with other regions to tackle difficult issues.  It is envisaged that we can further 

work to overcome common challenges. 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

 

13 

GOVERNANCE 

 

 

This section explains how ERW’s governance operates and how the delivery of the 

Business Plan will be governed. It also includes the latest update to the region’s value 

for money framework.  This section also sets out the accountability arrangements 

including managing risk and scrutiny.  

 

  

Page 28



 

 

14 

“ERW is an alliance of six local authorities governed by a legally constituted joint 

committee. Its aim is to implement the agreed regional strategy and business plan to 

support school improvement. “ 

The ERW Consortium was re-established following the release of the National Model for School 

Improvement (Welsh Government in February 2014). The National Model outlines the Welsh 

Government’s vision of regional school improvement consortia. The ERW Consortium was reformed in 

April 2014, with the Managing Director commencing in May 2014. The Cabinet of each respective Local 

Authority within the Region has adopted the Legal Agreement in place for ERW’s operation and 

governance.  

The Consortium comprises of six Local Authorities; Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, Pembrokeshire, Powys, 

the County Borough of Neath Port Talbot and the City and County of Swansea. The purpose of ERW is to 

deliver a single consistent and integrated professional school improvement service for children and young 

people in a range of settings within the six Local Authorities 

ERW is governed by a legally constituted Joint Committee. 

The Joint Committee membership is made up of the six Local Authority Leaders. 

ERW’s Joint Committee is advised by the Executive Board. The Board is made up of the six LA Directors, 

external school improvement experts, Headteacher representatives and the Managing Director. The 

ERW Strategy Implementation Board takes responsibility for the operational delivery of the ERW 

Business Plan. This is the region’s Leadership Team and is chaired by the Managing Director. All local 

authority Chief Education Officers sit on the board or are represented at this level. 

Representatives of the faith sector meet the Managing Director termly and feed into the Executive 

Board as and when relevant. 

 

 

 

Strategy Implementation Board  

Page 29



 

 

15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is recognised that ERW has to balance and manage a conflicting range of dependencies on what 

we deliver in the Business Plan 2016 – 2019. 

 

 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page is intentionally left blank] 

Page 31



 

 
  

P
age 32



 

 

ERW Organisational Design 
 

ERW’s Business Plan is made up of work streams aimed at delivering its three priorities. 

The work streams are also illustrated in the organisational design. 

ERW is a partnership which is managed in a three dimensional matrix management system as illustrated 

below. 

  

Page 33



 

 

18 

Risk Register  
 

ERW’s risk register has evolved in line with Internal Audit expectation and feedback from Estyn and the 

WAO. From April 2015, the register will form part of the Business Plan cycle as outlined in the overview 

noted in the introduction. It will inform the Self Evaluation and annual refresh of the Business Plan  

The Managing Director takes responsibility for coordinating and managing the risk register, however, 

named LAs or individuals will be noted as owners, and will be responsible for mitigating actions in 

conjunction with ERW’s central team. The register is monitored quarterly by the Operational Manager.   

Each Hub QA must take responsibility for accuracy and ownership for local risks.  

ERW has identified the process of taking action to mitigate risk and managing risks between the LA and 

the region as a key area to strengthen and to build on the current position. Quarterly updates are made 

bringing together the risks of the six LAs and ERW to make sure that the processes are effectively working 

together rather than avoiding or missing issues.  

The risk register is a standing agenda item on both Executive Board and Joint Committee. 

The format of the register will allow for the following stages to take place in terms of mitigation.  

· Terminate 

· Tolerate – accept e.g. WG use of grants 

· Transfer to 3rd party / LA 

· Treat – mitigate, reduce to acceptable level. 

 

The ERW register is split into three sections  

1. Corporate risks 

2. Operational school improvement risks, by local authority   

3. Financial risk 

Effective management of the region’s risk will enable us to support the organisation’s objectives, make 

effective use of resources and deliver outcomes as intended. Effective planning to mitigate risks will 

maximise opportunities and protect ERW’s reputation and assets.  

The process has been supported by Neath Port Talbot and has received positive feedback from internal 

audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

 

19 

Democratic Accountability and Scrutiny Framework  
 

The cross region forward work programme for 2014 – 2015 has enabled the region to build on the most 

effective scrutiny practices across the six LAs.  From April 2015, a structured framework will be established 

to strengthen arrangements. 

In ERW’s organisational design all roads lead to Local Democratic Accountability and Scrutiny. All work 

streams and activity both locally and regionally are led by the Joint Committee and are accountable locally.  

We think this is critically important because the resources and statutory duties lie with the LA. 

Last financial year we established a Regional Forward Work Programme for scrutiny - this included 

unverified pupil performance data as early as possible; verified data once available; progress of ERW 

Business Plan; ERW governance & categorisation.  

Following positive feedback on the Regional forward work plan as operational in 2014 – 2015, the Joint 

Committee agreed to build on this model for the coming three years. The regional FWP is coordinated 

centrally by the Operational Manager, and overseen by the Managing Director and a group of scrutiny 

officers form the six LAs. It has been agreed by the Joint Committee, Executive Board and Scrutiny officers 

to work towards a common strategy, plan and approach whilst working within local arrangements and 

schedules.  

As a region, we have reviewed other Joint Committee arrangements that we have established e.g. 

highways, reviewed current best practice and taken advice from CFPS (Centre for Public Scrutiny funded 

and commissioned by WG) and WLGA as to the best model. 

For 2016 – 2019, the six Local Authorities within ERW have agreed a Regional Forward Work programme 

and range of common actions with regard to Scrutiny activity and more general member engagement and 

development with regard to the regional school improvement service. It is agreed that a Regional Forward 

Work programme with additional capacity to add to it as required will:  

· provide elected members with the required oversight and scrutiny locally; 

· secure the effective coordination of regional work 

· make sure that the local statutory responsibility for school improvement, and the work of locally 

employed officers is overseen locally; 

· not add to the bureaucratic burden and the work of both officers and members, and minimise the 

risk of duplicating roles;  

· enhance all members’ information on the region’s work; 

· allow high quality challenge and focused accountability of the region’s work and  

· build on best practice 

Page 35



 

 

20 

In addition, it is recognised that the function is important not the model and that we can increasingly 

share the most effective scrutiny practice between the six local authorities. Each LA’s constitution is 

slightly different and we do not want to stray unnecessarily to these areas. Geographical considerations 

do not support working singularly to consider local responsibilities. In the Legal agreement setting up the 

ERW Joint Committee, it is noted that there is no need to burden staff unnecessarily with scrutiny.  

The twice yearly seminar for Chairs and Vice Chairs has a clear role and function.  The work is coordinated 

by City and County of Swansea. 

The work programme for 2016 – 2019 aims to: 

· build on existing effective practice across the six authorities; 

· support members by providing high quality, accurate and consistent information on school 

performance as well as ERW’s performance; 

· enable members to be fully informed and therefore be in a better position to challenge and 

question the region’s performance as well as focusing on their individual authority; 

· provide a stable foundation on which to evolve an increasingly common approach across the 

region; 

· provide a clear Forward Work Programme of both information to members and scrutiny topics; 

and 

· use a best practice model to set out expectations of scrutiny of ERW’s work. 

The main focus of this year’s work will fall into the following aspects – information giving and scrutiny 

activity. 

· This year, on request from members, we have added the makeup and performance of the 

challenge adviser team. 

· We are also sharing best practice – calling schools to scrutiny where necessary; targeted 

investigations on key issues.  

· All six chairs of scrutiny are also meeting six monthly - (NPT hosting 2015) with officers working 

well together (Swansea and Carmarthenshire hosting 2016). 

· We will also provide a seminar to all elected members in the region annually on ERW’s work, 

highlighting the context in each Local Authority 

· These common areas in the Forward Work Programme will be performance data; categorisation; 

ERW business Plan progress. 

· Shared area on ERW Intranet to share practice and resources.  Specifically, investigations which 

have cross LA impact will be shared.  

  

Page 36



 

 

21 

Value for Money Framework   
 

Following establishing a draft framework against which to measure value for money during 2014-

15. ERW has reviewed working arrangements and sought to value the efficiencies made as well as 

judge the impact on outcomes over all. The framework has been enhanced, with additional fields 

and further information.  

The evaluation of a range of information and evidence enables us to come to a judgement on the 

effectiveness and value for money provided by ERW. This means that we need to assess whether or 

not we have obtained maximum benefit from the goods and services both acquired and provided 

within the resources available. In addition, we need to judge whether strategies and interventions 

have been more successful than if implemented differently.  

 There are a range of aspects contributing to the judgement. The framework has seven aspects 

contributing to the judgement. Economy, efficiency, added value, collaborative advantage, 

effectiveness, sustainability and quality.  

Economy – minimising the resources used 

Efficiency – relationship between output from services and the resources used to produce them 

Effectiveness – relationship between outcomes and impact 

Sustainability – including succession planning and professional development and capacity 

building 

Collaborative advantage – making the most effective use of each other’s combined capacity 

Added value - Gaining more than the optimum expectation. 

Quality -Securing better quality and a focus on improvement. 

All Value for money reports are reported within the ERW governance structure and inform the self-

evaluation, risk register and financial planning. Some of the most recent recommendations for the 

end of 2015-16 are noted below for reference 

Recommendations 

1. All decisions and business cases make explicit reference to the vfm aspects of the decision, 

what the benefits of change and added value or improvement may be. This will allow us to 

track interventions against these 7 criteria on an annual basis. 

2. Gaining assurance/ Clarifying with each LA that any risks noted and aligned to authorities 

are known and mitigated. For example, highlighting where duplication or risks of duplicating 

work are identified through Hub QA. 

3. Undertake an annual Impact Review of ERW’s work for the academic year. 

4. Include a yearly review of value for money in the Annual Quality Calendar after the 

presentation of the AGS and financial statements.  

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page is intentionally left blank] 

Page 38



 

 

22 

Roles and Responsibilities  
 

This section includes the operating procedures for ERW and outlines the roles and responsibilities 

of key individuals and groups for delivering the ERW strategy.  These groups are reviewed in line 

with ERW’s business needs, plans and national priorities.  

The operational level detail and membership of each group can be found following this link,  

http://www.erw.wales/about-us/group-membership/ 

 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

 

P
age 40



 

 

The implementations of ERW’s work streams for the next three years requires each Local Authority 

to maintain its commitment to ERW of securing a full complement2 of Challenge Advisers who meet 

the required National Standards and adhere to ERW’s Code of Conduct. 

In order to deliver the priorities set out in its Business Plan and Strategy, ERW and the constituent 

six local authorities have established a small number of working groups to support delivery. 

The aim is to illustrate how this structure supports the effective delivery and accountability of the 

region’s work and supports the dual accountability of each individual to the Local Authority Director 

and the Managing Director. Responsibilities set out here should be reflected in the performance 

management and appraisal systems of each employing Local Authority. 

The region is led by the Joint Committee, advised and supported by the Executive Board.  The 

Strategy Implementation Board has operational oversight of the work streams in the Business Plan 

as well as the delivery of our strategies via the Strategic Priority Boards. 

There are four other enabling groups which support the infrastructure of ERW: 

· Advisory Board 

· Data Group 

· Scrutiny Officers  

· HR Officers  

· Finance Officers  

The region also has two strategic leads for cross cutting themes: 

 

· Strategic Lead for developing a Self-Improving System (Ian Roberts, Powys) 

 

· Strategic Lead for Reducing the Impact of Poverty on Attainment (Chris Millis, Neath Port 

Talbot) 

 

                                                           
2 As set out in the agreement between the LAs 2013 and updated 2015  

Page 41



 

 

25 

Roles and Responsibilities 
Chairs of groups: 

· To agree a schedule of dates for the academic year with the group. 

 

· To communicate with the administrative support officer for room bookings, agenda setting, 

circulation of documentation etc. 

 

· All meeting papers to be circulated one week in advance of meetings via your administrative 

support officer and that any additional papers should not be distributed on the day. 

 

· The minutes of the previous meeting to be completed and forwarded to the chair for 

approval and signed off within five working days of the meeting. 

 

· The chair and administrative support officer to be responsible for ensuring that all actions 

have been undertaken and completed prior to the next meeting. 

 

· All actions should be reviewed and recorded at the end of each meeting. 

 

· The Operational Manager to meet on a termly basis with each Chair from the Priority Boards 

and Working Groups to evaluate and monitor process and its effectiveness in their roles and 

responsibilities. 

 

· Short Terms of Reference to be adhered to. 

 

· Membership should be consistent and attendance good 

 

Directors: 
 

· Make sure that those representing authorities are the right individuals and fully contribute 

to the work of the group. 

 

· Utilise internal performance management arrangements to hold staff to account for regional 

roles and responsibilities. 

 

Administrative Team: 
 

· To make sure that all record of meetings and papers are circulated on time and to a high 

standard. 

 

· Monitor all actions with escalation reporting where necessary 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

 

26 

Name of group: Strategy Implementation Board  

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Overall oversight and delivery of regional work streams 

· Securing consistency and quality 

· Strategy oversight 

· Capacity building 

· Peer challenge 

· Forward planning and operational 

· Decision making 

· Regional Senior Management Team 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting. Rotating Chair 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances as delivering 

information on progress of projects. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

Page 43



 

 

27 

Name of group:  Headteacher Representative Board 

Title: Terms of reference - written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

To act as a reference point for ERW in terms of its interface with school leaders: 
 

· Enabling ERW to test ideas and principles in advance of policy formulation and during policy 

development. 

· Advising ERW of potential strengths and weaknesses of proposed policies and strategies. 

· Embracing and advocating a regional approach to problem solving. 

· Acting as a general conduit for information, using the aide memoire. 

· Feeding back to relevant headteacher groups on a regular, agreed basis. 

· Receiving the views of headteacher colleagues on agreed items. 

· Not discussing every issue facing the region with every colleague. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Mike Gibbon. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources: 

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

Page 44



 

 

28 

Name of group:  Leading Learning Priority Board 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group: 

· Professional learning. 

· Oversight and leadership of all training and CPD. 

· Headteacher / Teacher performance management and appraisal.  

· Capacity building.  

· Oversight and leadership of ERW Leading Learning Strategy. 

· Monitoring actions of operational working groups. 

· Set the focus for sub groups and hold to account. 

· Take responsibility for Business Plan action identified. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams individual LAs and the Delivery Board. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Kate Evan-Hughes (Pembrokeshire) 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources (including confidential materials): 

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

Page 45



 

 

29 

Name of group:  Teaching and Learning Priority Board 

Title: Terms of reference - written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· GCSE / PISA. 

· 50 – 90. 

· Literacy and Numeracy. 

· Curricular changes.  

· Foundation Phase. 

· IT for Learning.  

· Take responsibility for Business Plan action identified. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams in LAs, the delivery board and other stakeholders. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Barry Rees (Ceredigion) 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources (including confidential materials): 

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

30 

Name of group:  Support for Learning Priority Board 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Safeguarding Health Check used consistently regionally. 

· Monitoring system.  

· Oversight of working groups and actions.   

· Set strategy and scope for the next stage of regional working, e.g. EOTAS, LAC. 

· Set the focus for sub groups and hold to account.  

· Take responsibility for Business Plan action identified. 

 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Gareth Morgans (Carmarthenshire). 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

 

31 

Leading Learning – Working Groups 

Name of group:  Governors Reference Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Oversight and informed of ERW progress and priorities.  

· Statutory.  

· Quick wins – agendas / general.  

· Reports, training and fact sheets. 

· Strategic / school inspection.  

· Check EAS aspect.  

· Copy all training to Helen Morgan Rees.  

Membership: See membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· The present chair is Betsan O’Connor. 

· Topics for the agenda be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

32 

Name of group:  HR Working Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Strategic planning – HR. 

· Delivering Rewarding Excellence Programme. 

· Enabling engagement with Trade Unions.  

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams, the delivery board and LAs. 

 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The current chair is Ceri 

Davies (Pembrokeshire). 

· Topics for the agenda be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

33 

Name of group: 14 – 19 Working Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To provide the region with a unified strategic direction to bring about improvements in 

outcomes in the 14 – 19 phase and learner progression in line with the Youth Engagement 

& Progression Framework (YEPF). 

· To maintain a strategic overview of the work of Local Authority & Hub 14 – 19 Networks 

and monitor their progress. 

· To develop and support partnership working between education, training, health, social 

care, voluntary sector and youth support providers in the 14 – 19 phase and YEPF. 

· To be accountable for specific funded programmes through the current 14 – 19 RNDP 

grant and future Education Improvement Grant. 

· To facilitate sharing of effective practice across the region. 

· To establish task and finish groups as and when appropriate. The full group will decide the 

composition and Chair (if any) of these T and F groups. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams, the delivery board and LAs. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Elen James (Ceredigion). 

· Topics for the agenda be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources   

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

Page 50



 

 

34 

Name of group:  Digital Learning Working Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Capacity building. 

· Support capacity building for digital literacy. 

· Develop support for school for new curriculum. 

 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams, the delivery board and LAs. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is Ann 

Stoker (NPT). 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

  

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

 

35 

Name of group:  Literacy and Numeracy Working Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Operational consistency. 

· Training and development. 

· Strategy Implementation. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams the delivery board and the LAs. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present chair is 

Alan Edwards. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

36 

Support for Learning – Working Groups 

Name of group:  Attendance Working Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015. 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· Penalty Notices. 

· Grant facilitation. 

· Best practice. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams the delivery board and LAs. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Stuart Bradley (Ceredigion). 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources (including confidential materials)  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

 

 

Page 53



 

 

37 

Name of group:  ALN Reform 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To bring together ALN Leads to develop an ERW approach to supporting implementation of 

ALN Reform 

· To support our schools and services to implement ALN Reform. 

· To develop an approach to delivering/supporting /sustaining PCP training in the three ERW 

Hubs. 

· To consider performance data of vulnerable groups (SEN, LAC, EAL) and provide report on 

outcomes, trends, issues. 

· To consider developing an ERW training programme on SEN issues. 

· To identify and share good practice. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams the delivery board and LAs. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Nichola Jones (Pembrokeshire). 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

38 

Name of group:  LAC Education Working Group  

Title: terms of reference – written October 2015 

Purpose/role of the group: 

· Monitoring use of PDG/LAC grant across region    

· Recording impact of PDG/LAC grant across the region     

· Sharing of best practice across the region                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Membership: see membership spreadsheet 

Accountability:                                                                                                                                                   

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to their 

teams. 

Review:                                                                                                                                                                    

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

 

Working methods/ways of working:                                                                                                                     

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making 

· The chosen working method, in practical working terms, will be meetings: 

· Meetings will be held twice a term.                                                                                                                             

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting. The present chair is Cressy 

Morgan.  Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams                               

· Meeting papers will be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date                 

Format of meetings will be formal and may include small group discussions.                               

Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

 

Sharing of information and resources:        

· Group members will share information and resources via email.    

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team. 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

39 

OTHER 

Name of group:  Advisory Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To create a secure infrastructure for ERW and the central team. 

· To provide pro-active advice as ERW plans its operational work. 

 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  Chaired by Betsan 

O’Connor. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

  

 

 

 

Page 56



 

 

40 

Name of group:  Data Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To co-ordinate data requests made of schools. 

· To improve the way we use intelligence and reducing the burden on schools. 

· To set out annually: 

- Data required to be collected from schools 

- Eliminate duplication 

- Way data can be presented 

 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams and chair to report to HAM and BOC. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Gwion Dafydd. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

 

Page 57



 

 

41 

Name of group:  Finance Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To co-ordinate finance requests made of schools / LAs. 

· To improve the way we manage communications and reduce the burden on schools. 

· To set out annually: 

- Accountability / report requests 

- Timescales  

· Coordinate requests and answerability  

· Not for decision making but to inform officers to advise Directors  

· Enable and facilitate advice and discussion  

· Share best practice  

  

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams and chair to report to HAM and BOC. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Matthew Holder. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

Page 58



 

 

42 

Name of group:  Legal Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written March 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To co-ordinate and action legal requests made across six LAs 

· To improve the way we manage communications  

· To set out annually: 

- Accountability / report requests 

- Timescales  

· Coordinate requests and answerability  

· Not for decision making but to inform officers to advise Directors  

· Enable and facilitate advice and discussion  

· Share best practice  

· Reduce burden 

  

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams and chair to report by exception to MD. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Stephanie Williams (Swansea). 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

Page 59



 

 

43 

Name of group:  Scrutiny Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written March 2015 

Purpose / role of the group:  

· To co-ordinate and facilitate the joint regional scrutiny Forward Work Programme 

· To improve the way we manage communications and accountability 

· To set out annually: 

- A work plan and respond to additional requests 

· Coordinate requests and answerability  

· Not for decision making but to inform officers to advise elected members and directors  

· Enable and facilitate advice and discussion  

· Share best practice  

  

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams and chair to report by exception to MD. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Dave Mckenna (Swansea).  

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources  

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

Page 60



 

 

44 

Name of group:  Trade Union Reference Group 

Title: Terms of reference – written January 2015 

Purpose / role of the group: 

· Is a forum for ERW, local authority, teaching association and other trade 

union representatives to discuss and address strategic and region-wide workforce matters 

relating to teachers, school leaders and support staff. 

· Provides a formal opportunity for all trade unions to represent the views of their members 

in relation to the workforce implications of region-wide school improvement activities. 

· Participants in the forum aim to work in partnership to reinforce the importance of 

positive and effective workforce engagement leading to the raising of standards in schools. 

· The representatives of ERW's six constituent local authorities work collectively 

and collaboratively with the trade unions within the context of the Forum; all employer-

related decisions required are subsequently made at the level of each individual local 

authority, recognising that ERW does not have an employer status in relation to the 

schools’ workforce. 

Membership:  See membership spreadsheet. 

Accountability:  

· Individual group members are responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to 

their teams and LA. 

Review:  

· As part of the ERW annual review this group will be reviewed annually on its relevance and 

value of its work and the terms of reference. 

Working methods / ways of working:  

· The method of working will be a shared learning approach and joint decision making. 

· Sub groups to be convened if necessary to deliver particular work streams. 

· The chosen working method involve in practical terms will be meetings:- 

· Meetings will be held twice a term. 

· A nominated chair from within the group will chair the meeting.  The present 

chairperson is Aled Evans. 

· Topics for the agenda to be generated from the business plan and work streams. 

· Meeting papers to be circulated by email a week in advance of the meeting date. 

· Format of meetings be formal and may include small group discussions. 

· Non-members may be invited to group meetings under certain circumstances. 

· ERW central team will provide secretariat for the group. 

Sharing of information and resources 

· Group members will share information and resources via email. 

· There will be a web space for the group, it will be password protected and managed by the 

central team.  

 

 

Page 61



 

 

45 

  

Priorities for 2016 – 2019  

This section outlines ERW’s priorities for school improvement and improving learner 

outcomes. It provides oversight of the previous year and set targets for the next two years. 

Actions are noted according to work stream. The region’s priorities are grouped into three 

strategic themes: 

1. Leading Learning 

2. Teaching and Learning 

3. Support for Learning  

The Workstream Overview provides an at a glance reflection of the planned work. 

  

 
 

 

Page 62



 

 

46 

ERW’s priorities for 2015 – 2018 are: 

· Leading Learning  

· Teaching and Learning  

· Support for Learning 

These are supported by cross cutting work streams which may be amended yearly depending 

on operational changes and needs. The illustration on page 9 is a high level overview of the 

implementation arrangements for the ERW Business Plan. 

The priorities reflect and inform the Single Plan priorities for each local authority. 

 

Powys County Council - Challenge Plan and One Plan 

• People in Powys have the skills to pursue their ambitions 

• Transforming learning and skills 

 

Ceredigion County Council - For all 

• Supporting families to thrive and reach their potential 

• Enable all children and young people to reach their potential 

• Celebrate achievement 

• Improve literacy and numeracy & attendance 

 

Carmarthenshire County Council - Single Plan 

• People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential & Opportunities for Lifelong 

Learning  

• Skills and training for employment 

• Supporting families to develop children’s learning 

• Inclusive society 

• Increasing learning, education and training 

 

 

 

Page 63



 

 

47 

Pembrokeshire County Council – Plan 

• Children, Young People and families have the opportunity to fulfil their learning 

potential and to live healthy and happy lives 

• Access to quality learning and training opportunities  

 

City and County of Swansea - The One Swansea Plan 

• People learn successfully 

• Attendance 

• School achievement (school readiness & child poverty) 

 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough - Single Integrated Plan 

· People in Neath Port Talbot fulfil their learning potential 

  

Page 64



 

 

48 

 

• People in Powys have the skills to pursue their ambitions 

• Transforming learning and skills 

 

• Supporting families to thrive and reach their potential 

• Achievement in formal education is above or at the national average, 

with children and young people being provided with a rich and 

increasingly varied learning experience 

• Ceredigion remains a stronghold of Welsh language and the majority of 

children have good English and Welsh language skills 

• There is a strong tradition of volunteering in Ceredigion which benefits 

children, young people and their families 

• Ceredigion is a very low crime area and crime continues to decrease  

• Ceredigion has the lowest teenage conception rate in Wales  

• The strength of family support is significant, as many parents are 

dependent on grandparents to take childcare responsibilities to enable 

them to continue working 

 

• People in Carmarthenshire fulfil their learning potential 

• Provide the best opportunities for lifelong learning and development 

for all  

• Improve skills and training to increase employment opportunities for 

all  

• Support parents and families to develop their children’s learning  

• Develop an Inclusive Society  

• Increase the provision of childcare, education and training through the 

medium of Welsh 

 

• Children, Young People and families have the opportunity to fulfil their 

learning potential and to live healthy and happy lives 

•  Access to quality learning and training opportunities 

 

• People learn successfully 

• Attendance 

• School achievement  (school readiness & child poverty) 

 
• Raise educational standards and attainment for all young people 

• Safer, brighter futures 

• Better schools, brighter prospects  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 

 

49 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

Page 66



 

 

50 

 2016 – 2019 Priorities 2016 Workstreams  Implementation 

 

 

 

Business Plan 

2016 – 2019 

 

 

Leading and Learning  

 

Schools Causing Concern  

Curricular Support 

Self-improving School System  

Monitoring, support, 

challenge, intervention and 

advice  

Teacher assessment 

Literacy and numeracy  

Digital learning 

Quality assurance  

Leadership  

Professional learning  

Governor support  

Poverty  

Human Resources  

Welsh in Education  

Support for Learning  

 

 

 

 

Financial planning  

Risk management  

Performance management  

Self-evaluation  

Scrutiny  

Democratic accountability  

Value for money  

Staffing  

 

 

 

 

Directors  

Managing Director  

Strategy Implementation 

Board  

Key partners 

Working groups  

Challenge advisers  

Schools  

 

 

 

Teaching and Learning 

 

 

 

 

Support for Learning  

P
age 67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page is intentionally left blank] 

Page 68



 

 

 

 

  

Page 69



 

 

52 

Internal Improvement Priorities  
 

This section outlines ERW’s internal arrangements for its effective operation, organisational 

improvement systems and actions. It provides a review of the previous year’s action and progress and 

sets targets for the next two years. Actions are largely process focused, with the overall aim to enable 

the delivery of the outcomes.  

1. Systems and structures and accountability structure  

2. Planning for improvement  

3. Communication  

4. Accountability  

 

(The work will be supported through a shared services framework and under the advice of the Advisory 

Board. The Advisory Board has been set up to support and advise ERW and its senior team in ensuring 

that the organisation follows due and legal process in its delivery of its core functions.) 

 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

1. Planning for improvement 
 

SUCCESS CRITERIA Actual 2015 Target 2015 - 2016 Target 2016 - 2017 Target 2017 - 2018 

Fewer risks identified as ‘high’ following mitigating actions 25% 15% 15% 10% 

Improved and consistent engagement with regional priorities across all LAs Adequate Good Good  Excellent  

Consistent understanding across region and stakeholder of key aims and modus 

operandi  

Weak  Good Good  Excellent  

Assurance finding by internal audit of satisfactory  Satisfactory Good Good Good  
 

Action  Responsibility Resources  Timescale 

 

Business Plan – completed on time and to a high standard  Managing Director 

 

Core and grant Quarterly reporting and updates – June, Sept, December, March 

Updates as necessary January 

Dash board 

Self-evaluation arrangements  - to include an annual report Managing Director,  

HOH and Quality 

Manager  

Core and grant May – annually 

Ongoing QA feeding to process 

Supporting schools  and GBs to have capacity 

External review/evaluation. Undertake external review of 

satisfaction, brand etc. (This will provide objective judgement 

on success) 

Managing Director  Core and grant June/ July 2016 

Advisory group – maintain advisory group in line with Legal 

Agreement* responsibilities laid out for constituent LAs 

Managing Director 

 

Core and grant April 2016 and half termly 

Risk register and mitigation arrangements Managing Director 

 

Core and grant Ongoing quarterly 

Effective financial planning Section 151 officer, 

Finance office and 

Managing Director  

 Core and grant Ongoing quarterly reporting – 6 weekly monitoring meetings 

Needs analysis – to inform plan.   Data officer Core and grant Ongoing  

 

Advisory group to function effectively and fully and create the 

support network required for the region – maintain shared 

services framework 

Managing Director  Core and grant As above. Termly meetings 

Research commissioned on poverty implications  Managing Director  Core and grant  Draft of first by May 2016, second by October 2016 

PRIORITY 

 

Establish robust arrangements for the effective operation of ERW through effective planning for improvement. 

P
age 71



 

 

54 

Effective use of ERW value for money framework  Managing Director    

Effective and regular monitoring and reporting against Quality 

Calendar  

Quality Manager    

  

P
age 72



 

 

55 

2. Communication  

 

SUCCESS CRITERIA Actual 2015  Target 2015-2016 – 

2017 

Target 2016-2017 Target 2017 – 2018 

During the past 12 months, as ERW’s work has 

developed and widened – effective arrangements 

to transfer information have not evolved quickly 

enough 

 

Clearer systems for sharing information 

widely understood by all stakeholders 

To move from poor to 

good  

Good to very good   

Fewer complaints  ( note actual 2014-15)    

Communications considered all work streams 

 

1 70% 80% 90% 

Clear understanding of ERWs role and functions  (current position unclear, survey 

planned for this year) 

90+% success rate 

achieved  

Maintain   

 

Action  Responsibility Resources  Refresh requirements from March 2016 

 

Engage suitable partner to deliver strategic expertise 

through Sir Gar PR 

Managing Director  Core and grant Immediate 

New website Communication lead Grant  Ongoing effective updating 

Communications capacity Managing Director Core and grant  As outlined in SLA 

Use of social media Communication lead As required  June 2015 and ongoing 

Effective use of website as primary link  All Advisers  Core and grant From April 2015 

Refresh/ review April 2016 

Newsletter Communication lead Core and grant At least termly but as required 

PRIORITY 

Improve consistency and quality of communication, and secure effective communication arrangements for all stakeholders 

 

P
age 73



 

 

56 

 

Single sign on for all online developments  Head of Digital 

Learning  

Core and grant   

Full use of Intranet cross region and LA Head of Digital 

Learning  

Core and grant   

Engage with WG formally termly to provide update on key 

areas of work and identify emerging issues 

Managing Director 

and communication 

lead 

Core and grant Half termly with WG link and termly with communications 

lead for WG 

Publish minutes of key working groups on website Operational manager 

and communication 

lead 

Core and grant  6 weekly updates for key working groups 

Regional satisfaction survey Undertake cross region analysis 

on feedback and progress 

Managing Director 

Operational manager 

Core and grant September 2016 

Strengthen and present more widely the quality calendar  Head of Quality and 

Managing Director  

Core and grant  Weekly actions as set out in plan  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 74



 

 

57 

 

 3. Accountability 

 

SUCCESS CRITERIA Current position 2014-15 Target 2015 – 2016 Target  2016-2017 Target 2017-2018 

Value for money adequate Good  Good  Very good 

 

Action  Responsibility Resources  Timescale 

 

Annual focused area focused through internal audit – area of focus 

agreed between MD, Head of Internal Audit and Section 151 officer. 

Managing Director, Section 151 

officer, head of internal audit 

Core and grant Annually 

CIPFA regulations used and accepted Managing Director, Joint Committee Core and grant April 2015 

Internal system to hold reports/ school intelligence/ MIS Executive Board Core and grant Operational by September 2015 

All LAs to use and adopt single pupil level tracking system to use TC Executive Board TBC Remaining LA s by September 2015 

Joint Committee  and Executive Board meetings to be held termly 

under arrangements set out in Legal Agreement 

Operational Manager and Head of 

Democratic Services CCC 

Core and grant Quarterly arrangements on place 

Establish clear terms for reference for key groups to aid 

understanding across and beyond region 

Operational manager Core and grant April 2015 

Publish all relevant documentation on website Administrative support team and 

Operational Manager 

core and grant  Ongoing 

Provide précis of main issues for cascading following each HT board 

meeting 

Managing Director and Chair 

 

Core and grant Ongoing  

Scrutiny FWP framework agreed  Managing Director, scrutiny officers Core and grant Regularly as set out in the forward 

work programme 

Sharing effective practice and making best use of website and 

networks  to share practice amongst members 

Communications lead  Core and grant April onwards 2015 

Simple monitoring dashboard against Business Plan actions and 

outcomes 

Data officer Core and grant April 2015 and update quarterly 

 

PRIORITY  

Strengthen and maintain robust and rigorous processes for accountability and to ensure the effective administration of agreed systems and processes. 

P
age 75



 

 

58 

Value for money measures updated and used  Managing Director  Core and grant  As necessary in quality calendar  

Refresh code of corporate governance to reflect changes in 

expectation  

TBC   

Regional Scrutiny Seminar  Managing Director    

Scrutiny shared area  Head of Digital Learning    

Challenge and Review events with WG well managed Managing Director and Lead 

Director, Lead Chief Executive 

Core and grant As required 3 – 4 times annually  

Consistent Performance management  arrangements for  Challenge 

Advisers 

Managing Director and HOH and 

Director of all LAs  

Core and grant Biannual process with agreed 

process from July 2016  

Finance Officers Group to facilitate and use Finance Group to share 

expectation and information  

Finance Lead  Core and grant  Termly  

Ongoing  

HR Group to facilitate local training with Headteachers (using 

common template) 

HR Group Chair  Core and grant  Termly  

Ongoing  

Review and strengthen legal group to support operational work of 

Advisory Board 

Chair Legal group Core and grant Termly ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



 

 

59 

 

 4. Systems and structures 
 

SUCCESS CRITERIA Current position Target 2015 – 2016 Target 2016-2017 Target 2017-2018 

Consistent engagement and contribution across LAs Varied in kind contributions Consistently high Consistently high  

Effective systems well understood ( see survey) Consistently high   Consistently high   
 

Action  Responsibility Resources  Timescale 

 

Maintain and sustain fully functioning team – admin , finance etc Operational Manager Core and grant Ongoing  with annual review of 

capacity needs 

Internal policies and procedures – complaints, safeguarding, etc. Managing Director Core and grant Annually reviewed 

Digital capacity built– reduce travel etc.  Maintain and strengthen use of 

digital communities  

Managing Director and Operational 

Manager  

Core and grant June 2015 

Support and administer working group within new arrangements 

 

Group chairs 

Operational Manager 

Core and grant From April 2015  

Termly QA of Challenge Adviser reports to Estyn, ACV,  Heads of Hub  Core and grant Termly QA report 

Data timetable/ schedule Data officer Core and grant Maintain and manage schedule on a 

termly basis 

Review membership of key groups to ensure best representation and 

involvement of schools  

Managing Director Core and grant September 2015 

Support for local authorities to sustain and strengthen education 

infrastructure 

Managing Director, Lead Director 

Lead Chief Executive 

Core and grant As required 

Framework for Shared services in place Managing Director Core and grant Updated as required 

Digital monitoring / value for money system  Managing Director  Core and grant  Update regularly   

Further enhance and add to Rhwyd system to meet needs of all core 

business  

Head of Digital Learning  Core and grant  Ongoing as planned  

PRIORITY 

Effective arrangements in place for the operational working of ERW 

 

P
age 77



 

 

60 

 

 

 

 

 

This section outlines the expected outcomes and performance measures over time. 

 

Similarly, we have identified success criteria which is more qualitative.  We have further 

reviewed these, after one year of reviewing progress.  We have amended the criteria and 

attempted to better challenge ourselves  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outcomes   

Page 78



 

 

61 

Leading Learning 

 

Priority Outcome Dashboard  

OUTCOME BASED 

SUCCESS CRITERIA 

HUB 2014/15 2015/16 

TARGETS 

2016/17 

TARGETS 

Percentage (Number) 

of schools judged as 

A or B on 

categorisation 

Northern 

72.0 (363) 

60.8 (93) 

75 

68 

76 

70 

Western 78.6 (143) 78 78 

Eastern 75.1 (127) 78 78 

Percentage (Number) 

of schools judged as 

RED on 

categorisation 

Northern 

4.4 (22) 

5.9 (9) 

4.1 

4.5 

4 

4.4 

Western 3.3 (6) 3.6 3.5 

Eastern 4.1 (7) 4.0 4.0 

Percentage (Number) 

of schools judged as 

AMBER on 

categorisation 

Northern 

28.4 (143) 

35.3 (54) 

 

 

 

 

Western 26.9 (49)   

Eastern 23.7 (40)   

Percentage (Number) 

of schools judged as 

YELLOW on 

categorisation 

Northern 

50.4 (254) 

43.1 (66) 

 

 

 

 

Western 55.5 (101)   

Eastern 51.5 (87)   

Percentage (Number) 

of schools judged as 

GREEN on 

categorisation 

Northern 

16.9 (85) 

15.7 (24) 

21 

17 

22 

18 

Western 14.3 (26) 17 18 

Eastern 20.7 (35) 25 26 

FTE Challenge 

Advisor per Hub 

 

 

Northern 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Western    

Eastern    

NPQH numbers 

entering/ completing 
Northern 

60/40 

20/10 

 

 

 

 

Western 11/6   

Eastern 29/24   

Priority Outcome  

 

To improve the quality of leadership and its impact on improving outcomes across the consortium  

Page 79



 

 

62 

HTLA numbers 

entering/ completing 
Northern 

44/32 

15/10 

 

 

 

 

Western 14/11   

Eastern 15/11   

Newly qualified 

teachers 
Northern 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Western    

Eastern    

New HTs supported 
Northern 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Western    

Eastern    

Vacancies HTs 
       

Vacancies Governors 
       

Proportion of GBs 

categorised as.... 
       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



 

 

63 

Teaching and Learning 
 

 

Priority Outcome Dashboard  
 

Baseline Data 

Context For Improvement 

April 2014 

(2013 data) 

April 2015 

(2014 data) 

April 2015 

(2015 data) 

Increase the % achieving the FPI at the 

end of the Foundation Phase from 

82.4% 

Powys 84.7 
85.1 

82.4 

89.6 
89.0 

85.7 

90.6 
91.1 

87.1 

Ceredigion 85.9 87.9 92.2 

Pembrokeshire 84.5 
82.8 

88.7 
85.9 

89.2 
87.7 

Carmarthenshire 81.6 84.1 86.8 

Swansea 80.1 
80.7 

83.9 
84.0 

86.2 
84.8 

NPT 81.7 84.2 82.3 

Improve the LA positions at 

Foundation Phase so as to reflect the 

expected WG ranking or better 

Powys 16 
 

 

9 
 

 

4 
 

 

Ceredigion 12 5 1 

Pembrokeshire =13 
 

10 
 

6 
 

Carmarthenshire 9 16 10 

Swansea 19 
 

21 
 

16 
 

NPT =20 15 22 

Increase the % achieving the CSI at the 

end of KS2 from 84.5% 

  

Powys 86.4 
86.7 

84.5 

88.3 
88.6 

87.3 

90.4 
90.4 

88.3 

Ceredigion 87.3 89.1 90.3 

Pembrokeshire 82.8 
84.5 

88.7 
88.0 

88.6 
88.4 

Carmarthenshire 85.4 87.4 88.2 

Swansea 84.3 
83.4 

87.3 
86.2 

89.2 
87.1 

NPT 82.0 84.1 88.3 

Improve the LA positions at KS2 so as 

to reflect the expected WG ranking or 

better 

Powys 8 
 

 

7 
 

 

4 
 

 

Ceredigion 5 13 5 

Pembrokeshire 9 
 

19 
 

9 
 

Carmarthenshire 12 18 10 

Swansea 11 
 

9 
 

8 
 

NPT 17 20 22 

To raise standards of teaching and learning for all learners across the region consistently in all Key Stages 

P
age 81



 

 

64 

Increase the % achieving the CSI at the 

end of KS3 from 78.1% 

Powys 83.0 
83.3 

78.1 

86.5 
87.3 

81.7 

89.3 
89.7 

84.3 

Ceredigion 83.8 89.0 90.5 

Pembrokeshire 80.0 
78.3 

81.1 
83.2 

84.5 
84.9 

Carmarthenshire 77.1 84.5 85.1 

Swansea 76.4 
75.1 

80.6 
77.8 

83.2 
81.1 

NPT 73.1 73.1 77.8 

Improve the LA positions at KS3 so as 

to reflect the expected WG ranking or 

better 

Powys 5 
 

 

=3 
 

 

4 
 

 

Ceredigion 2 2 3 

Pembrokeshire 7 
 

12 
 

10 
 

Carmarthenshire 9 11 8 

Swansea 12 
 

14 
 

14 
 

NPT =18 16 22 

Increase the % achieving the L2+ 

indicator at the end of KS4 from 55.6% 

 

*Figures may be higher than those officially 

published due to late re-marks being 

included here 

Powys 58.1 
59.4 

55.6 

59.6 
60.2 

58.0 

63.6 
63.3 

60.3 

Ceredigion 62.0 61.4 62.7 

Pembrokeshire 51.9 
53.1 

53.3 
56.6 

53.8 
58.1 

Carmarthenshire 53.9 58.7 60.9 

Swansea 55.3 
55.6 

59.2 
57.9 

62.1 
60.5 

NPT 56.0 55.8 58.0 

+National Reading Test in English – 

improve hub test scores to ensure that 

the percentage of pupils achieving 

scores of 85+ are comparable to or 

better than the Welsh average of 

85.4% and show progress 

Powys 88.7 
88.7 

86.6 

86.8 
86.7 

84.7 

86.6 
86.5 

85.1 

Ceredigion 88.8 86.6 86.2 

Pembrokeshire 87.1 
86.5 

85.2 
84.6 

84.9 
85.0 

Carmarthenshire 86.0 84.2 85.1 

Swansea 86.1 
85.6 

84.9 
83.9 

85.6 
84.5 

NPT 84.7 82.2 82.7 

+National Reading Test in Welsh – 

improve hub test scores to ensure that 

the percentage of pupils achieving 

scores of 85+ are comparable to or 

better than the Welsh average of 

90.7% and show progress 

Powys 93.6 
91.3 

90.3 

86.4 
84.9 

84.8 

88.2 
85.1 

84.8 

Ceredigion 90.3 84.2 83.7 

Pembrokeshire 91.6 
89.6 

85.8 
84.8 

83.1 
84.1 

Carmarthenshire 89.1 84.6 84.3 

Swansea 90.8 
90.8 

84.5 
84.6 

84.8 
85.8 

NPT 90.8 84.8 87.2 

 

P
age 82



 

 

65 

Increase the % of boys achieving the 

FPI at the end of the Foundation 

Phase from 78.0% 

Powys 81.2 
81.7 

78.0 

86.7 
86.2 

81.6 

87.7 
88.2 

83.4 

Ceredigion 82.8 85.0 89.6 

Pembrokeshire 80.9 
79.0 

85.2 
81.6 

86.2 
83.8 

Carmarthenshire 77.8 79.3 82.3 

Swansea 75.2 
75.3 

79.3 
79.4 

82.7 
80.9 

NPT 75.5 79.6 77.7 

Increase the % of boys achieving the 

CSI at the end of KS2 from 81.3% 

  

Powys 84.0 
84.6 

81.3 

84.6 
85.3 

83.8 

86.8 
87.5 

85.5 

Ceredigion 86.1 86.4 88.9 

Pembrokeshire 80.7 
81.5 

84.7 
84.4 

86.8 
86.3 

Carmarthenshire 82.0 84.3 85.9 

Swansea 80.2 
79.3 

83.9 
82.6 

86.4 
83.9 

NPT 77.7 80.0 79.2 

Increase the % of boys achieving the 

CSI at the end of KS3 from 73.1% 

Powys 78.2 
78.9 

73.1 

83.9 
84.7 

78.4 

86.6 
86.8 

80.7 

Ceredigion 80.2 86.2 87.0 

Pembrokeshire 75.5 
74.3 

75.6 
79.3 

81.5 
80.9 

Carmarthenshire 73.4 81.5 80.5 

Swansea 71.7 
69.0 

77.8 
74.4 

79.9 
77.3 

NPT 64.7 69.0 73.3 

Increase the % of boys achieving the 

L2+ indicator at the end of KS4 from 

50.6% 

 

*Figures may be higher than those 

officially published due to late re-marks 

being included here 

Powys 52.4 
54.3 

50.6 

53.3 
55.3 

53.1 

58.3 
58.5 

55.6 

Ceredigion 58.3 59.4 58.7 

Pembrokeshire 45.9 
48.1 

48.7 
53.1 

47.1 
53.7 

Carmarthenshire 49.6 56.1 58.1 

Swansea 50.6 
50.8 

54.2 
51.9 

58.8 
55.6 

NPT 51.2 48.5 50.4 

Decrease the % of NEET (Young people 

not in education, employment or 

training) – 1 year lag in data here (new 

data not out until July) 

 

* No Hub or ERW %s possible due to the 

way the data is published 

Powys 2.7 
N/A 

N/A 

2.3 
N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 

Ceredigion 1.3 1.8 N/A 

Pembrokeshire 3.4 
N/A 

3.2 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

Carmarthenshire 3.0 3.4 N/A 

Swansea 3.9 
N/A 

3.5 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

NPT 4.4 3.8 N/A 

 

P
age 83



 

 

66 

Increase the % achieving 5A*A (GCSE 

or equivalents) at the end of KS4 

 

 

Powys 18.6 
19.0 

16.6 

17.6 
19.4 

16.3 

17.8 
18.8 

16.9 

Ceredigion 19.8 23.0 20.7 

Pembrokeshire 15.2 
15.5 

14.1 
15.5 

13.4 
15.6 

Carmarthenshire 15.7 16.5 17.1 

Swansea 16.3 
16.3 

16.1 
15.2 

17.7 
17.0 

NPT 16.1 13.7 15.8 

Increase the % achieving 5A*A+ (GCSE 

or equivalents) at the end of KS4 

 
* pupils have to also achieve A*/A in 

English/Welsh and Mathematics 

Powys 9.9 
10.1 

9.5 

9.4 
9.8 

9.2 

10.5 
11.3 

10.1 

Ceredigion 10.6 10.6 12.8 

Pembrokeshire 9.1 
8.9 

8.7 
9.5 

6.8 
9.0 

Carmarthenshire 8.9 10.1 10.4 

Swansea 10.3 
9.7 

10.0 
8.6 

12.1 
10.4 

NPT 8.6 6.5 7.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 84



 

 

67 

Support for Learning 
 

To provide high quality support for learners when and where they need it – so that they can fully engage and attain 

 

Priority Outcome Dashboard  

 

Baseline Data 

Context For Improvement 

April 2014 

(2013 data) 

April 2015 

(2014 data) 

April 2015 

(2015 data) 

Increase the % of FSM pupils achieving FPI at the end of 

the Foundation Phase from 68.2% 

 

Powys 73.8 
71.7 

68.2 

73.4 
75.2 

71.9 

79.2 
79.9 

75.2 

Ceredigion 68.2 78.3 81.3 

Pembrokeshire 74.7 
69.0 

74.2 
71.4 

81.2 
77.7 

Carmarthenshire 64.3 69.6 75.5 

Swansea 65.1 
66.7 

72.2 
71.4 

74.1 
72.3 

NPT 69.3 70.0 69.7 

Increase the % of FSM pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS2 from 70.0% 

Powys 74.3 
72.1 

70.0 

77.6 
76.6 

72.7 

74.5 
76.2 

74.8 

Ceredigion 68.0 74.3 78.9 

Pembrokeshire 70.3 
71.8 

75.9 
77.1 

76.8 
75.8 

Carmarthenshire 72.9 78.1 75.1 

Swansea 69.9 
68.3 

71.6 
68.8 

76.6 
73.8 

NPT 65.7 65.2 69.9 

Increase the % of FSM pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS3 from 53.0% 

Powys 54.0 
57.6 

53.0 

64.3 
68.3 

61.1 

77.3 
76.7 

67.0 

Ceredigion 62.2 74.4 75.7 

Pembrokeshire 56.2 
55.0 

54.0 
66.1 

66.7 
68.4 

Carmarthenshire 54.1 74.6 69.3 

Swansea 51.1 
50.6 

59.5 
56.2 

67.7 
63.7 

NPT 50.0 52.1 58.4 

Increase the % of FSM pupils achieving the L2+ indicator 

at the end of KS4 from 28.8% 

Powys 31.4 
29.9 

28.8 

38.0 
36.1 

28.7 

35.6 
35.4 

34.0 

Ceredigion 27.0 32.3 35.1 

Pembrokeshire 28.2 
28.8 

25.0 
27.2 

24.3 
29.7 

Carmarthenshire 29.3 28.7 33.3 

Swansea 27.5 
28.5 

26.7 
27.8 

38.2 
36.4 

NPT 30.1 29.4 33.8 

P
age 85



 

 

68 

Increase the % of LAC pupils achieving FPI at the end of 

the Foundation Phase from 49.3% 

 

Powys 33.3 
50.0 

49.3 

83.3 
77.8 

54.4 

33.3 
33.3 

54.3 

Ceredigion 66.7 66.7 - 

Pembrokeshire 75.0 
33.3 

50.0 
37.5 

50.0 
50.0 

Carmarthenshire 25.0 35.0 50.0 

Swansea 47.1 
58.1 

60.9 
60.0 

68.8 
57.1 

NPT 65.4 58.3 41.7 

Increase the % of LAC pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS2 from 49.4% 

Powys 42.9 
42.9 

49.4 

37.5 
64.3 

57.0 

57.1 
50.0 

64.6 

Ceredigion 42.9 100.0 40.0 

Pembrokeshire 45.5 
55.2 

55.6 
53.3 

62.5 
70.0 

Carmarthenshire 61.1 52.4 72.7 

Swansea 45.0 
47.4 

76.9 
57.1 

60.0 
65.0 

NPT 50.0 45.5 68.0 

Increase the % of LAC pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS3 from 32.8% 

Powys 6.7 
16.7 

32.8 

53.8 
70.4 

55.8 

77.8 
86.7 

61.0 

Ceredigion 33.3 85.7 100.0 

Pembrokeshire 16.7 
29.3 

38.5 
50.0 

53.8 
63.4 

Carmarthenshire 31.4 55.6 67.9 

Swansea 48.5 
41.3 

57.1 
52.2 

48.1 
50.0 

NPT 33.3 50.0 52.9 

Increase the % of LAC pupils achieving the L2+ indicator 

at the end of KS4 from 13.6% 

Powys 25.0 
14.3 

13.6 

28.6 
13.3 

16.5 

8.3 
23.8 

20.0 

Ceredigion 0.0 0.0 44.4 

Pembrokeshire 15.8 
9.6 

0.0 
17.8 

14.3 
10.0 

Carmarthenshire 6.1 25.8 9.1 

Swansea 20.7 
16.9 

8.3 
16.3 

36.4 
27.3 

NPT 13.3 24.0 18.2 

 

 

** These figures are based on very small numbers in some cases ** 

 

P
age 86



 

 

69 

Baseline Data 

Context For Improvement 

April 2014 

(2013 data) 

April 2015 

(2014 data) 

April 2015 

(2015 data) 

Increase the % of Children in Need achieving FPI at the 

end of the Foundation Phase 

 

Powys 36 
 

 

60 
 

 

47 
 

 

Ceredigion 48 57 68 

Pembrokeshire 56 
 

* 
 

67 
 

Carmarthenshire 38 36 43 

Swansea 44 
 

61 
 

63 
 

NPT 64 38 52 

Increase the % of Children in Need pupils achieving the 

CSI at the end of KS2  

Powys 32 
 

 

43 
 

 

41 
 

 

Ceredigion 37 52 44 

Pembrokeshire 43 
 

38 
 

56 
 

Carmarthenshire 44 58 58 

Swansea 38 
 

49 
 

51 
 

NPT 43 47 55 

Increase the % of Children in Need pupils achieving the 

CSI at the end of KS3  

Powys 26 
 

 

33 
 

 

55 
 

 

Ceredigion 59 41 64 

Pembrokeshire 22 
 

33 
 

50 
 

Carmarthenshire 35 61 49 

Swansea 30 
 

47 
 

43 
 

NPT 32 39 40 

Increase the % of Children in Need pupils achieving the 

L2+ indicator at the end of KS4  

Powys * 
 

 

16 
 

 

* 
 

 

Ceredigion * * 32 

Pembrokeshire * 
 

* 
 

* 
 

Carmarthenshire 13 13 * 

Swansea 11 
 

13 
 

21 
 

NPT 13 16 * 

 

Impossible to calculate HUB/ERW %s due to lack of data on StatsWales 

 

P
age 87



 

 

70 

Baseline Data 

Context For Improvement 

April 2014 

(2013 data) 

April 2015 

(2014 data) 

April 2015 

(2015 data) 

Increase the % of EAL achieving FPI at the end of the 

Foundation Phase 

 

Powys 78.3 
85.3 

82.8 

92.7 
86.4 

83.4 

92.6 
93.3 

86.2 

Ceredigion 96.6 76.0 94.4 

Pembrokeshire 96.0 
86.0 

90.9 
80.8 

81.8 
82.6 

Carmarthenshire 82.7 77.2 82.9 

Swansea 78.4 
81.1 

81.2 
83.7 

84.9 
85.6 

NPT 89.0 92.3 88.2 

Increase the % of EAL pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS2  

Powys 91.3 
93.3 

86.3 

80.0 
81.6 

88.2 

91.7 
92.0 

90.5 

Ceredigion 95.5 83.9 92.3 

Pembrokeshire 82.6 
83.3 

87.5 
88.2 

93.5 
88.0 

Carmarthenshire 83.8 88.5 85.5 

Swansea 85.2 
85.7 

89.2 
90.0 

91.8 
91.1 

NPT 87.8 92.8 88.4 

Increase the % of EAL pupils achieving the CSI at the end 

of KS3  

Powys 73.9 
75.8 

79.6 

82.4 
88.6 

84.1 

97.4 
95.3 

86.1 

Ceredigion 80.0 92.6 92.0 

Pembrokeshire 88.0 
72.6 

88.5 
88.5 

91.7 
84.7 

Carmarthenshire 62.2 88.5 82.0 

Swansea 84.4 
82.1 

80.6 
82.2 

82.4 
84.4 

NPT 72.1 88.5 89.9 

Increase the % of EAL pupils achieving the L2+ indicator at 

the end of KS4  

Powys 19.0 
38.9 

60.6 

65.2 
69.6 

66.3 

63.0 
57.9 

65.6 

Ceredigion 66.7 73.9 45.5 

Pembrokeshire 60.7 
59.7 

50.0 
61.0 

64.0 
55.1 

Carmarthenshire 59.0 67.3 50.0 

Swansea 64.9 
64.7 

65.2 
67.3 

71.9 
69.8 

NPT 64.3 76.0 59.5 

 

** Some LAs have small cohorts 

** Swansea has such a large cohort compared with all other LAs, that data is driven by them mostly 

P
age 88



 

 

Success Criteria  

This section draws together all the success criteria that ERW expect over the next three years.  Each work 

stream has identified challenging and aspirational questions 

· Literacy and Numeracy  

· Digital Learning 

· Reducing the impact of poverty on attainment (Poverty) 

· Professional Learning (and Leadership) 

· Self-Improving School System  

· Curriculum Support (14-19, FP, GCSE, Welsh Bac, PISA) 

· Governor Support  

· Welsh in Education 

· HR 

· MEAG 

· Teacher assessment 

· Monitoring, support, challenge, intervention (and categorisation) MSCI 

· Safeguarding  

· Support for Learning  

· Schools Causing Concern  

· Quality Assurance  

· Attendance  

 

Key: 

P Yes, working well   ?      Not clear on impact and evidence 

P Yes, continuing our work               x       Further work required  

 

Page 89



 

 

72 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Literacy and Numeracy 

What will success look like? 

2015 – 2016  

 

· Are learners developing their literacy and numeracy skills at and above expected levels? P    

· Are learners able to apply their literacy and numeracy skills successfully in context across the curriculum? P 

· Do ERW schools have the capacity to deliver and drive improvement in literacy and numeracy? P 

· Is numeracy being as well developed across all subjects as literacy? P 

· Do ERW’s schools comply with all statutory requirements of the LNF? P 

· Are schools being provided with the correct and necessary support to help them improve? P 

· Are we challenging pupil progress sufficiently to ensure all pupils make good or better progress in their literacy and 

numeracy skills? P 

· Is our bespoke and central training fit for purpose? P 

· Are LPLNs being used effectively to add capacity and support school improvement? x 

· Are Challenge Advisers effectively brokering support from subject specialists, to target and drive school improvement? ?  

 

2016 – 2017  

· Is the LNF embedded in our schools? 

· Are all green and yellow schools engaging in supportive arrangements where they can build their own capacity whilst 

supporting others? 

· Do we have confident schools taking risks to strive for excellence? 

· Are we strengthening the index of excellence by including specific practice in relation to literacy and numeracy development? 

· Are we effectively Quality Assuring the work of subject specialist officers across all LAs? 

· Do all ERW schools comply with statutory requirements?  

 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Are schools well supported by each other? 

· Have standards in literacy and numeracy accelerated at a quicker pace than in the previous three years and at a faster pace 

than other regions? 

· Are our learners better able to engage with further learning because of improved literacy and numeracy skills? 

 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Are literacy and numeracy strategies well supported by digital learning? 

· Do our schools now feel equally confident in literacy and numeracy? 

 

 

 

Page 90



 

 

73 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Digital Learning  

What will success look like? 

2016 – 2017  

· Do ERW monitor and support eSafety practices in schools? 

· Do ERW schools engage with the 360 degrees Safe Cymru Framework, to ensure pupils, staff, parents and governors are as safe online, 

as possible? 

· Do all Challenge Advisers use IT systems (Rhwyd) to record their core visits efficiently and in a consistent manner? 

· Do all ERW officers use the ERW Intranet to store, share and work collaboratively, thus ensuring consistency in support and report 

writing? 

· Are we strengthening the index of excellence by including specific practice in relation to Digital Competence use and development? 

· Are we effectively reviewing and Quality Assuring the work being included in the index of excellence? 

· Are we effectively Quality Assuring the work of subject specialists across all LAs? 

· Are ERW schools engaging with the National Digital Competency Framework? 

· Do all individuals, both pupils and staff have the required access to Hwb? 

· Are all ERW schools fully aware of the potential afforded by the variety of online tools provided by Hwb? 

· Are schools engaged with the Hwb platform? 

· Have ERW schools identified individuals to be responsible for Digital Competence and are these colleagues being supported 

appropriately? 

· Are appropriate Level 2 qualifications being supported appropriately across ERW? 

· Are standards in L2 qualifications improving over the past 3 years? 

· Is IT being used to effectively facilitate the Moderation process across ERW schools, and is this resulting in greater consistency across 

the region? 

 
2017 – 2018  

· Are schools well supported by each other, with school to school networks such as Hwb Centres of Excellence, Digital Pioneer Schools, 

360 safe Cymru Schools, subject PLCs, etc, being developed and used to their full potential? 

· Are ERW schools continuing to engaging with the National Digital Competence Framework? 

· Are ERW schools being supported appropriately in their engagement with the Digital Competence Framework? 

· Is the schools' engagement with Hwb having a positive effect on standards across the curriculum? 

2015 – 2016  

· Are learners developing their ICT skills at and above expected levels? P 

· Are learners able to apply their ICT skills successfully in context across the curriculum? P 

· Are teachers and support staff fully equipped to support learners to develop and use their ICT skills for learning? P 

· Do ERW schools have the capacity to deliver and drive improvement in ICT for learning?  

· Do ERW monitor their eSafety practices in schools? P 

· Are learners able to keep themselves safe online? P 

· Are schools being provided with the correct and necessary support to help them improve? P 

· Are we challenging pupil progress sufficiently to ensure all pupils make a good or better progress in their ICT skills? P 

· Is our bespoke and central training fit for purpose? ? 

· Are Hwb+ accredited trainers being used effectively to add and support school improvement? P 

· Are Challenge Advisers effectively brokering support from subject specialists to target and drive school improvement? ? 

2018 – 2019  

· Monitor the school to school support and challenge in the development of Digital Competence at both pupil and staff level 

· Are all ERW schools fully engaged with the National Digital Competence Framework? 

· Is the challenge provided by ERW in schools engagement with the Digital Framework at an appropriate level? 

· Is the schools' engagement with the Digital Competence Framework having a positive effect on standards at all stages of pupil progress? 

· Are all members of staff developing the competence and confidence to allow pupils to develop their digital competence? 

· Do all ERW schools have robust eSafety procedures in place to ensure all pupils and staff are safeguarded appropriately when working 

online? 

 Page 91



 

 

74 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Poverty  

What will success look like? 

  

2015 – 2016  

· Are pupils on FSM showing accelerated progress to reduce the impact of poverty on attainment?                                            P 

· Do we have a common Vulnerable Assessment Profile across the region?                                                                                        x 

· Has good practice in transition at all phases been identified and signposted?  Learners make informed choices that raise 

aspiration in family.                                                                                                                                                                                      P 

· Do we have a common data toolkit that identifies successful schools in closing the gap?                                                     P 

· To reduce the number of young people who are NEET across the ERW region on leaving Year 11 to 3.5% of cohort ? 

 

2016 – 2017  

· To raise attainment by 15 year olds eligible for FSM of the level 2 inclusive of E/W and Maths to 30% by 2016. 

· Do schools take a central role in coordinating and planning early interventions within the community, working with all 

agencies? 

· Do all schools self-evaluate; plan and deliver the appropriate curriculum for all learners. 

· To reduce the number of young people who are NEET across the ERW region on leaving Year 11 to 3.3% of cohort. 

· Have we improved our knowledge and intervention to support rural poverty? 

· Have we shared the LA interventions which support rural poverty? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Do learners from deprived backgrounds benefit from the highest teaching and learning? 

· Do successful schools have active and effective leadership and deploy staff appropriately and effectively to tackle 

poverty. 

· To raise attainment by 15 year olds eligible for FSM of the level 2 inclusive of E/W and Maths to 40% by 2016. 

· To reduce the number of young people who are NEET across the ERW region on leaving Year 11 to 3.1% of cohort. 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Have we supported identified schools (rural) to use effective strategies to improve outcomes? 

· Have we made sure that all PDG money is used effectively to gain as much impact as possible? 

 

 

Page 92



 

 

75 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Professional Learning/Leadership 

 

                   What does success look like? 

 

 

2015 – 2016  

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme?                       P 

· Are governors confident in their role?                                                                                                                                         ? 

· Are governors fulfilling their statutory duty?                                                                                                                             ? 

· Is there a high quality training programme and support package being delivered consistently across the region? P 

· Are governors in key roles aware of their responsibilities and able to deliver in a safe and effective way?    P 

· Do governors understand their critical role in supporting and challenging their school to raise standards?    P 

· Do governors fully understand the national categorisation of schools and the impact of their role?       P 

 

2016 – 2017  

· Have we have targeted the appropriate resource according to need? 

· Have we highlighted the appropriate current priorities? 

· Has the training and support impacted upon the ability of governors to challenge and offer support to their schools? 

· Has the delivery methods been effective and how can they be improved (ICT / social media)? 

· Is communication effective between governor support and school improvement? 

· Have we developed greater knowledge of Governor’s skills and development needs? 

· Are we confident that governors are well informed and fulfilling statutory duties? 

· How well does the school to school support extend to governor support? 

 

2017 – 2018 * 

·  

 

 

2018 – 2019 * 

·  

 

 

Work stream: Governor Support 

What will success look like? 

Page 93



 

 

76 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Curriculum Support  

What will success look like? 

2015 – 2016  

· Are schools well equipped to meet the necessary changes to the curriculum? P 

· Are our advisers fully informed and able to advise schools on recent and proposed curricular changes? P 

· Are we prepared for the changes to the GCSEs for 2015/2016? P 

· Are all schools effectively implementing the statutory requirements for foundation phase? P 

· Are Primary schools better equipped to develop pupils Scientific Literacy? P 

· Are schools well supported early enough to plan for effective curriculum change? P 

· Do all groups of learners perform at or above expected levels in all curricular subjects?  

· Is there a reduction in the gender and FSM gap in performance? P fsm P gender 

· Are learner needs being identified at an early stage and appropriate support and curricular provision put in place? P 

· Are Challenge Advisers effectively brokering support from subject specialists and lead schools, to target and drive school 

improvement? P 

 

2016 – 2017  

· Do we have effective systems to identify and share best practice across all key stage, particularly in Foundation Phase? 

· Do learners have access to an inclusive and varied curriculum to meet their individual needs, especially at Key Stage 4? 

· Do we have confident schools taking risks to strive for excellence? 

· Are we effectively quality assuring the work of Challenge Advisers and subject specialists across all LAs? 

· Have we provided support for 14 – 19?  Welsh Baccalaureate?  GCSE?  

 

2017 – 2018  

· Are schools well supported by each other? 

· Are we enhancing the effective practice embedded in Foundation Phase? 

· Have standards in all subjects and phases accelerated at a quicker pace than in the previous 3 years and at a faster pace 

than other regions? 

· Are our learners better able to engage with further learning because of their improved literacy and numeracy skills? 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Have ERW schools become confident to support each other in non-core subjects? 

· Have we continued to support core subjects well? 

· Have the perceptions of school leaders of the support received from ERW continued to improve? 

 

 

Page 94



 

 

77 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Teacher Assessment  

What will success look like? 

2015 – 2016  

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme?  P                  

· Are Leaders of assessment confident in their role? P 

· Are schools fulfilling their statutory duty? P 

· Is there a high quality training programme and support package being delivered consistently across the region to 

support and enable schools to standardise and moderate well? P 

· Do governors understand their critical role in supporting and challenging their school to raise standards and making 

sure assessment is fair and robustly moderated? x 

· Are we confident about the impact of accurate teacher assessment? x 

2016 – 2017  

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme?                    

· Are Leaders of assessment confident in their role?  

· Are schools fulfilling their statutory duty?  

· Is there a high quality training programme and support package being delivered consistently across the region to 

support and enable schools to standardise and moderate well? 

· Have we have targeted the appropriate resource according to need? 

· Have we highlighted the appropriate current priorities? 

· Has the training and support impacted upon the ability of schools and their leaders of assessment to challenge and 

offer support to their peer schools? 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Do we have evidence of secure and accurate teacher assessment? 

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme?                    

· Are Leaders of assessment confident in their role?  

· Are schools fulfilling their statutory duty?  

· Is there a high quality training programme and support package being delivered consistently across the region to 

support and enable schools to standardise and moderate well? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme?                    

· Are leaders of assessment confident in their role?  

· Are schools fulfilling their statutory duty?  

· Is there a high quality training programme and support package being delivered consistently across the region to 

support and enable schools to standardise and moderate well? 

· Does cluster moderation provide rigorous process of challenge? 

· Does the workforce have confidence In the TA system? 

· Have regional systems to moderate and standardise TAs, increased resilience in schools to asses confidently and 

consistently? 

· Have we built effective assessment skills and confidence to prepare for successful futures? 

Page 95



 

 

78 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Work stream: Early Years and 

Foundation Phase  

What will success look like? 
2015 – 2016  

· Have standards increased in LLC, MD and PSDCDWB across the region? P 

· Have numbers of teachers and practitioners with the necessary skills to improve and influence others in their schools 

and settings particularly in relation to exemplary Foundation Phase pedagogy increased? ? 

· Have all relevant practitioners working in the Foundation Phase been trained? P 

· Has Foundation Phase training and guidance had a direct impact on the raising of standards in teaching and learning? 
P 

· Have the highest achieving schools in regards to standards and pedagogy been identified and are they being used to 

support teams and sharing good practice school to school? P 

· Is there accurate standardisation and moderation across the region? P 

 

2016 – 2017 

· Are teachers in Reception and Yr 2 classes all using the Foundation Phase Pupil Profile successfully? 

· Is training for Nursery / Non – maintained and Year 1 teachers on FPP? 

· Are the revised areas of learning successfully planned for in Foundation Phase classrooms? 

· Can the region continue to increase standards in LLC, MD and PSDWBCD across the region?  

· Can pupils develop literacy and numeracy skills above expected levels? 

· Are Foundation Phase pupils able to use Literacy and Numeracy skills across all Areas of Learning? 

· Is there effective use of outdoor provision in developing children’s Literacy and Numeracy skills? 

· Is there Quality Assurance of FPP and TAs? 

· Are Coordinators involved in the self-evaluation processes? 

 
2017 – 2018  

· Is tracking of pupils of FPP used effectively to identify ALN and MAT pupils from an All Wales baseline? 

· Is early identification used effectively to support all learners with learning differences? 

· Can the region continue to increase standards in LLC, MD and PSDWBCD across the region?  

· Are pupils developing literacy and numeracy skills above expected levels? 

· Are Foundation Phase pupils able to use Literacy and Numeracy skills across all Areas of Learning?  

· Is there effective use of outdoor provision in developing children’s Literacy and Numeracy skills? 

· Is there Quality Assurance of FPP and TAs? 

 
2018 – 2019  

· Have we embedded the best practice in Foundation Phase for ALN, MAT, efsm pupils? 

· Have we strengthened literacy, numeracy and digital competence? 

· Is tracking of FPP used to target clusters of schools to provide support to groups of learners at risk of not reaching 

the expected outcome? 

· Are FPP moderation procedures in place across clusters of schools? 

· Is the use of FPP having a positive effect on the standards of Foundation Phase pupils? 

· Are leaders in schools trained or have experience in Foundation Phase practice? 

· Is the variation of Foundation Phase practice and delivery reduced across the region? 

· Are case studies used across the region to support quality Foundation Phase practice? 

· Is the transition from Flying Start and non- maintained settings meeting the needs of all pupils? 

· Is Foundation Phase practice responsive to the new curriculum? 

Page 96



 

 

79 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015 – 2016  

· Has the rollout of the Index of Excellence in all secondary schools in the region been implemented, to include 

effective monitoring? P 

· Second core visit – has sustaining teaching and learning as a focus for second core visit found that all schools are 

engaged in school to school support? (100% of schools to receive entitlement according to agreed ERW guidance) 
P 

· School self-evaluation & Improvement planning – do all SER and SIP to comply with WG legislation? P 

· Are schools fully engaged in the process of developing a self-improving system across the region? P 

· Do we have successful pathfinders which can share effective strategies for the next two years? P 

· Are we able to evidence improved outcomes due to effective school to school support? P 

· Is morale enhanced? P 

 

 
2016 – 2017  

· Have we seen improvements to the index profile of secondary schools and successfully rolled out to all primary 

schools? – Improvement in secondary school profile and profile of categorization. Introduce primary schools to 

process 

· Second Core Visit – have we maintained focus on teaching and learning and support between schools? 

· School self-evaluation & Improvement planning – Is the judgment on planning is focused more on outcomes for 

learners than systems and processes? 

· Is the proportion of brokered support between schools increasing at the planned pace? 

· Are all green and yellow schools engaging in supportive arrangements where they can build their own capacity 

whilst supporting others? 

· Do we have confident schools taking risks to strive for excellence and is morale better? 

· Are we strengthening the index of excellence and maintaining its focus? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Have we secured a bespoke plan for CV1 and CV2 which supports a self-improving system? 

· Are schools well supported by each other? 

· Are the few schools not engaged with others supported and facilitated to engage? 

· Have standards accelerated at a quicker pace than in the previous three years and at a faster pace than other 

regions? 

 

 

Work stream: Self Improving School System  

What will success look like? 

2018 – 2019  

· Have we secured a bespoke plan for CV1 and CV2 which supports a self-improving system? 

· Are schools well supported by each other? 

· Are the few schools not engaged with others supported and facilitated to engage? 

· Have standards accelerated at a quicker pace than in the previous three years and at a faster pace than 

other regions? 

· Is our support menu based largely on school to school support?  

 

 

Page 97



 

 

80 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

2015 – 2016  

· Is the national categorisation system consistently implemented across the region by suitably trained and effective 

Challenge Advisers? As a consequence, is challenge, support and intervention for schools robust, appropriate and 

credible? P 

· Is school to school support increasing and recognised as an important part of school improvement and for 

developing leadership skills in schools across the phases? P 

· Has Challenge Adviser training and self-analysis led to all meeting the national standards and providing high quality 

support to schools? P 

· Are pre-inspection reports to Estyn accurate, fair and objective? P 

 

 
2016 – 2017  

· Have we completed a thorough forward look on categorisation? 

· Have we shared our best practice with other regions? 

· Is the national categorisation system fully embedded and consistent across the region? 

· Is school to school support embedded across the region? Do schools benefit from this support while developing 

their own leadership skills in providing systemic change? 

· Do we have a clear judgement on each PRU and Special Schools which leads to support? 

· Is our analysis of Rhwyd data enabling us to better focus support and resources? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Is the national categorisation system fully embedded and consistent across the region? 

· Is school to school support embedded across the region?  Do schools benefit from this support while developing 

their own leadership skills in providing systemic change? 

· Does our three year analysis reflect well what we expected? 

· Has our bespoke approach for CV1 and CV2 supported schools equally well as previously? 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Are we only focused on those schools which require significant support and intervention? 

· Are our most resilient schools supporting and monitoring others facilitating their improvement? 

 

 

Work stream: Monitoring,      

Support, Challenge and Intervention  

What will success look like? 

Page 98



 

 

81 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Work stream: Professional Learning and 

Leadership 

What will success look like? 
2015 – 2016  

· Are the pilot Professional Learning Schools are developing effectively in supporting ITET students? P 

· Have the LA training programmes for NQTs been evaluated and reviewed? P 

· Is a suitable modular middle leader programme being delivered and accessed through UWTSD? Is regional guidance for 

middle leader training at LA and school level available, supported by signposting to examples of good practice? P 

· Are effective OTP and ITP programmes are being delivered (OLEVI/UWTSD)? P 

· Have pilot programmes for secondary aspiring senior leaders and Headteachers have been completed and reviewed? P 

· Will the content of the revised national NPQH programme be delivered effectively to meet specific LA needs across the 

region? P 

· Has the pilot programme for newly appointed/acting/new primary Headteachers has been completed and reviewed? P 

Do existing newly appointed HT networks have a common curriculum and is national funding employed effectively in 

support of their content? X  

· Have bespoke professional learning events for Headteachers have been planned, delivered, evaluated and reviewed? P 

· Has Challenge Adviser training has been planned, delivered, evaluated and reviewed? P 

 

2016 – 2018  

· Is an increasing number of Professional Learning Schools evident? 

· Is a consistent and effective NQT professional learning programme being successfully delivered across the three hubs 

within the region? 

· Is the UWTSD middle leader modular programme fit for purpose and is it being delivered effectively across the region? 

· Do the OTP and ITP programmes successfully develop good and excellent teachers across the region? 

· Are the aspiring secondary senior leaders and Headteachers programmes being delivered effectively across all hubs in 

the region?  

· Does the NPQH programme effectively supports the region’s Headteacher leadership needs for the future? 

· Are newly appointed/acting/new Primary Headteachers able to access effective practical training across the region? 

· Do professional learning events for practising Headteachers working in all sectors/settings have credibility and effectively 

address national and regional priorities and developments? 

· Can Challenge Advisers access appropriate professional learning at national and regional levels?  

 
2018 – 2019  

· Are Professional Learning Schools effective in sharing excellent practice? 

· Is the regional NQT programme for induction and mentoring consistent and effective in developing teachers new to 

the profession? 

· Is the partnership with UWTSD delivering a high quality leadership modular programme with significant numbers of 

delegates receiving value for money? 

· Do the OTP and ITP programmes continue to successfully deliver high quality modules that develop good and excellent 

teachers across the region? 

· Are the aspiring secondary senior leaders and primary headteacher programmes delivering value for money and 

successfully developing the future strategic leaders? 

· Are the NPQH candidates receiving value for money and supporting the region’s headteacher leadership needs for the 

future? 

· Do practicing headteachers working all sectors / settings access credible and effective professional learning that 

addresses national and regional priorities and developments? 

· Do challenge advisers access effective and fir for purpose professional learning at national and regional levels? 

 

Page 99



 

 

82 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015 – 2016  

· Have we given schools suitable data and information in order to compare their performance in Welsh and through 

the medium of Welsh? P 

· Have we provided high quality resources to schools? P 

· Have we developed a regional language charter? P 

· Has Welsh GCSE improved outcomes following interventions to support the new programme of study? P 

 

Work stream: Welsh in Education 

What will success look like? 

  

2016 – 2017  

· Are schools better placed to deliver the new curriculum and the use of Welsh as a consequence of the support we 

have provided? 

· Have we consistently built on our regional coordination of the WESPs and welsh in education? 

· Have the LAs continued to increase the proportion of pupils staying in Welsh education? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Have we facilitated a common approach to supporting Welsh medium schools? 

· Have we supported well Welsh fist language and Welsh second language as subjects? 

 

2018 – 2019 *  

·  

 

 

Page 100



 

 

83 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Work stream: Minority Ethnic Pupils 

What will success look like? 

  

2016 – 2017  

· Do schools take a central role in coordinating and planning early interventions within the community, working with all 

agencies? 

· Do all schools self-evaluate; plan and deliver the appropriate curriculum for all learners. 

· To continue to narrow the attainment gap at the end KS4 by2017 (individual LA determined) 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Do all learners from deprived backgrounds benefit from the highest teaching and learning? 

· All successful schools have active and effective leadership and deploy staff appropriately and effectively to support 

attainment of minority ethnic groups. 

· Have we shared the best practice in supporting ME pupils? 

· Have we used our data analysis to best plan to support all learners? 

2015 – 2016  

· Are pupils Minority Ethnic showing accelerated progress to narrow the gap at all levels? P 

· What does good practice look like? P 

· Are schools aware of which family of schools they belong to on the basis of minority ethnic pupils? P 

· To narrow the attainment gap at the end of KS4 by 2016 (individual LA determined) P 

· Working group identifying good practice material and resources used in individual LAs. Good practice identified 

developed to support strategic management of ethnic minority pupils as well as teaching and learning in 

schools.  Materials to be put on the website P 

· Initial data trawl taken place to identify schools and attainment of ethnic minority pupils across LAs.  Working group 

to identify key criteria for identifying families of schools wider then attainment P 

·  

2018 – 2019 * 

·  

 

 

Page 101



 

 

84 

  

Work stream: Quality Assurance  

What will success look like? 

  

2016 – 2017  

· Is the online platform used consistently by all? 

· Has the online system led to consistency of practice? 

· Is unsatisfactory practice challenged? 

· It the QA calendar followed and actioned by all?  

· Have the termly QA reports been completed by the Heads of Hub? 

 

2017 – 2018  

· Is the online platform used consistently by all? 

· Has the online system led to consistency of practice? 

· Is unsatisfactory practice challenged? 

· It the QA calendar followed and actioned by all?  

· Have the termly QA reports been completed by the Heads of Hub? 

 

2015 – 2016  

· Do we have an effective platform to ensure that we have sight of reports in all Local Authorities? P 

· Have we organised an appropriate training programme for Challenge Advisers? P 

· Are QA procedures clear and effectively communicated to all Hub leads? P 

· Are QA procedures adhered to in all LAs? x 

· Have the termly QA reports been completed by the Heads of Hub? x 

· Do we have an effective QA calendar that incorporates all QA activity over two years? P 

· Have we provided feedback on reports to LAs? P 

 

2018 – 2019  

· Is the online platform used consistently by all? 

· Has the online system led to consistency of practice? 

· Is unsatisfactory practice challenged? 

· It the QA calendar followed and actioned by all?  

· Have the termly QA reports been completed by the Heads of Hub? 

 

 

Page 102



 

 

85 

 

 

 

  

Work stream: HR    

What will success look like? 

  

2016 – 2017  

 

Have we circulated the agreed Model Performance Capability Procedure to all schools in the region?  

Have we circulated the agreed 2016/17 Model Teachers' Pay Policy to all schools in the region? 

Has the Raising Standards and Rewarding Excellence training programme begun to be delivered across the region?  

Are the region's Challenge Advisers and HR teams fully informed and able to advise schools on performance 

management and performance capability? 

Has professional HR support been planned for those schools identified as having the greatest need, through the 

menu of support?  

Have we developed a work plan to address the future HR training and development needs of the region's school 

leaders and governors?  

Have we identified opportunities to remove unnecessary duplication of local authority HR policy and process 

development across the region?  

 

Have we developed a relationship with HR leads of other regional consortia, with a view to sharing practice and 

Work stream:     

What will success look like? 

  
2015 – 2016  

 

Have we circulated the agreed 2015/16 Model Teachers' Pay Policy to all schools in the region? P 

Has a detailed project plan been developed for the Raising Standards and Rewarding Excellence programme across 

the region? P 

Have we developed a model Performance Capability Policy that will be used as a basis for delivering appropriate 

training to school leaders and governors across the region? P 

 

Page 103



 

 

86 

 

2017 – 2018  

 

Have we reviewed and evaluated the performance management and performance capability training?  

Have the region's school leaders and governors become more confident in tackling underperformance?  

Have we identified and shared excellent practice demonstrated by the region's schools, in respect of 

tackling underperformance? 

Have the region's school leaders and governors become more skilled in implementing performance 

management?  

Do governors have a better understanding of the leadership standards?  

Are leadership standards being used consistently and effectively in the performance management of 

Headteachers across the region?  

Have we identified and shared excellent practice demonstrated by the region's schools, in respect of 

implementing performance management? 

Have we circulated the agreed 2017/18 Model Teachers' Pay Policy to all schools in the region? 

Have we developed a consistent HR training offer across the region, which meets the development 

needs of school leaders and governors?  

Are schools across the region setting HR-related targets by which they can measure their improvement?  

Have we worked in partnership with other regional consortia in order to seek to remove unnecessary 

duplication of HR work programmes?  

 

 

2018 – 2019  

Do we have a suite of high quality HR toolkits (including policies and procedures), which are available to 

all schools in the region?  

Have we circulated the agreed 2018/19 Model Teachers' Pay Policy to all schools in the region? 

Is there a high quality HR training programme being delivered consistently to school leaders and 

governors across the region? 

Have schools across the region become more confident in supporting each other in tackling 

underperformance and implementing performance management?  

Overall, are the region's school leaders and governors more proficient in managing HR issues?  

Have we worked in partnership with other regional consortia in order to remove unnecessary duplication 

of HR work programmes? 

  

Page 104



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page is intentionally left blank] 

Page 105



 

 

87 

 

  Work stream: Attendance    

What will success look like? 

  
2015 – 2016  

· Have we communicated the region’s collaborative stance on attendance?  

· Have we provided schools with resources and support? 

· Have we delivered a single guidance across all six LAs? 

 

2016 – 2017  

· Has the attendance group further strengthened inter LA collaboration and consistency? 

· Have we continued to improve attendance for vulnerable groups? 

 

 

2017 – 2018 * 

 

 

 

 

2018 – 2019 * 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

 

88 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annex   

Page 107



 

 

89 

 

Annex 1: Glossary  

Explanatory Notes 

· All pupil performance data used is verified by WG and published in the Statistical Bulletin unless noted 

otherwise 

· ERW adheres to CIPFAs expectations and as outlined in the ERW Code of Corporate Governance  

· ERW works within the boundaries set out in the inter-authority legal agreement which established the Joint 

Committee  

· HOH = Head of Hub  

MD = Managing Director  

HLD = Head of Leadership  

HLN = Head of Literacy and Numeracy  

HHR = Head of HR 

HDL = Head of Digital Learning  

LOT = Learning Observation Tool 

SISS = Self-improving school system 

LOL = Leaders of Learning 

MSCI = Monitoring, Support, Challenge, Intervention 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Roles and Responsibilities  

Page 108



 

 

Annex 2: Quality Calendar  

ERW Quality Assurance Calendar 2015 – 2017  

To develop and implement consistent quality assurance processes and improvement arrangements across the region, 

whilst securing consistent quality of service delivery to schools as set out in Ladder of Support and ERW Business Plan.  

The purpose of the ERW Quality Calendar is: 

· to safeguard and raise the academic standards of pupils in all schools across ERW 

· to assure the quality of the support opportunities that ERW offers to schools 

· to promote continuous and systematic improvement across ERW 

· to ensure that information provided by ERW is accurate and of a high quality 

· to inform self-evaluation and on-going improvement 

 

Training to ensure consistency 

All ERW Challenge Advisers and Subject Specialist have received detailed training on effective report writing, the use of the ERW 

intranet to complete reports and also the use of the new Rhwyd online system to complete annual core visits. Additional, bespoke 

training is provided where need is identified. This has led to improved quality of reporting and greater consistency in the work 

carried out by all personnel. 

 

Strategy Group 

On-going quality assurance of CV1 and CV2 reports and impact. The 6 Local Authorities will have internal procedures in place to 

monitor the quality and accuracy of report writing. 

On-going quality assurance and sampling of reports schools reports to Estyn. 

Updating and monitoring of Risk Register on bimonthly basis. 

Updates emanating from central Team monitoring will be shared with strategic group. 

P
age 109



 

 

91 

Monitor overall lessons learnt from operational school improvement work to feed SER May final version of SER 

 

Strategic Implementation Board 

Individual group members responsible for reporting back on activities of the group to their teams. 

Review progress made by working groups. 

Receive Quality reports from Head of Standards on operational issues. 

 

Executive Board  

Review of operational plans. 

 

Quarterly updates outlining the risks of the six LAs and ERW to make sure that the processes are effectively working together 
rather than avoiding or missing issues 

 

ERW Risk Management 

The ERW Risk Register includes a comprehensive log of risks that threaten the organisation’s success in delivering the ERW 

Strategic Business Plan.  It is a dynamic living document, which is populated through the organisation’s risk assessment and 

evaluation process.  This enables risk to be treated, tolerated, transferred and mitigated.  It provides a structure for collating 

information about risks.  

The core aim of the ERW Risk Register are as follows: 

· to ensure that the risks to the achievement of ERW’s objectives are understood and effectively managed; 

· to ensure that risks to the quality and delivery of services are understood and effectively managed; 

· to protect the services, staff, reputation and finances of ERW through the process of early identification of risk, risk 
assessment, risk control and elimination. 
 

P
age 110



 

 

92 

Each of the six Local Authorities have local registers to control or eliminate corporate risks, as well as school improvement risk.  
The ERW Risk Register ensures that once risks are identified, they are shared and escalated to the six Local Authority Risk 
registers. 

The Executive Board forms the strategic link between the Local Authorities and ERW which provides a structure and process that 
enables ERW to control the risks to achieving its strategic objectives and be assured that adequate controls (actions) are in place 
to reduce these risks to acceptable levels within the Local Authorities. 

 

For further details of quality control, quality assurance and activities to bring about consistency and quality, please refer to the ERW 
Quality Handbook.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 111



 

 

93 

 

The ERW Cycle  

2016 

2017 

Operational through 
Strategy Group – ongoing 

QA activity 

Activity / Analysis Output Activity Report to 

Apr On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports 

 

Monitoring and feedback of 
LA reports to Estyn 

 

Monitor Risk Register 

 Financial Plan Review  

May On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Production of Challenge 
Adviser Self-evaluation for 
June 

Annual collation of all QA activity 

in Self Evaluation Report 

 

Collation of recommendations from 

scrutiny 

 

Review of CV1 and Categorisation 

Annual Self Evaluation Report 

 

Regional scrutiny seminar to include 
review of CV1 and categorisation. 

Delivery Board 

 

Exec 

 

Joint Committee 

Jun On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Monitoring and feedback of 
LA reports to Estyn 

 

Roll out of Challenge 
Adviser Self Evaluation 

Analysis of FPh / KS2&3 findings; 

correlation with tests. 

 

Value For Money review 

 

Estyn inspection findings 
analysis. 

 

QA of Estyn reports 

Quarter 1 BP actions update 

 

Annual evaluation against ChAds standards by 

advisers 

Delivery Board 

 

Exec 

 

Challenge and review 

 

P
age 112



 

 

94 

 

Monitor Risk Register 

 

Annual teacher assessment 
verification programme 

Jul On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Review of Challenge Adviser 

Handbook and Guidance. 

Analysis of reports, CV2 findings 

 

Quality of KS4 Support 
programme 

ERW Position re A Level  

 

ERW Position RE GCSE  

 

CV2 findings – full analysis.  

 

Analysis of impact of menu of support. 

 

Accounts on view for public Inspection for 
20 days. Draft financial statements to 
each Director of Finance  

 

Effective planning and scheduling for 
September 

 

Challenge Adviser training for the year 

scheduled and planned 

Exec 

 

Joint Committee -  

finance only 

 

Aug Preparation for CV1  Revised and updated handbook available 
on ERW website 

 

Sep On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV1 
reports  

 

Estyn inspection findings analysis. 

 

QA of Estyn reports 

 

Collation of recommendations from 

scrutiny. 

 

ERW Primary Data Pack V1 and 
ERW Secondary Data Pack V1 

ERW JOINT Committee to approve and 
publish accounts together with an audit 
certificate (End Sept)  

 

Annual Governance Statement 

 

Risk Register update 

 

Quarter 2 BP actions 

Joint Committee 

 

Regional Scrutiny 
Seminar 

P
age 113



 

 

95 

released for Individual schools 
Las and ERW  

 

Analysis of performance for KS4 
in target schools. 

 

Regional scrutiny seminar agenda to include 

review of CV2, unverified data and emerging 

findings 

Full report on impact of KS4 intervention 

programme. 

Oct On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV1 
reports  

 

Monitoring and feedback of 
LA reports to Estyn 

 

Monitor Risk Register 

Staff Performance Management 

 

ERW Secondary Data Pack V2  

 

Annual Questionnaire for Heads Delivery Board 

 

Exec Board 

Nov On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV1 
reports 

 

 

ERW level data analysis for 
Challenge and Review 

 

Regional School Categorisation 
Moderation for Primary 

 

 

QA report of quality of Governor Support 
Training 

Challenge and 
review 

P
age 114



 

 

96 

Dec On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Monitoring and feedback of 
LA reports to Estyn 

 

Monitor Risk Register 

Estyn inspection findings 
analysis. 

 

Regional School Categorisation 
Moderation for Primary 

 

Analysis of reports, CV1 findings 

 

Impact of PDG funding 

 

ERW Primary Data Pack V2 and 
ERW Secondary Data Pack V3  

 

Secondary Quartile Summary  

 

Value For Money review 

Quarter 3 BP actions 

 

Risk Register Update 

 

CV1 findings – full analysis. 

 

Impact of PDG funding report based on 
findings from CV1 

Delivery Board 

 

Exec Board 

Jan On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

National School Categorisation 
verification   

 

WG publish categorisation on My 
Local School  

 

Maths KS4 early entry analysis 
for target schools. 

 

Draft BP ready Delivery Board 

Feb On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Monitoring and feedback of 
LA reports to Estyn 

Estyn inspection findings 
analysis. 

 

 

 

 Joint Committee 

P
age 115



 

 

97 

 

Monitor Risk Register 

Mar On-going live monitoring 
and feedback of CV2 
reports  

 

Staff Performance Management 

 

English KS4  early entry analysis 
for target schools 

Q4 BP actions 

 

End of year statement  

 

End of year review of BP  

Challenge and 
review 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 116



 

 

Annex 3: Finance  

This section sets out the value of grants offered to ERW and the Central Budget and Local Authority 

contributions for 2015-2016 

 

 

 

Grants Awarded to ERW 2015-2016

Education Improvement Grant Pupil Deprivation Grant

Schools Challenge Cymru GCSE / Milan

Pioneer Schools Regional Collaboration Fund

Literacy, Numeracy, MFL New Deal Funding

Modern Foreign Language Learning in Digital Capacity Building

Learning in Digital CPD National Professional Qual of Headteachers

GCSE Yr9 Cross Curricula LNF Welsh Baccalaureate

Mathletics Primary Events Securing Teacher Assessment

Mentoring for Headteachers Yr 6 National Numeracy Tests

Page 117



 

 

99 

The monetary values of the grants received during 2015-2016 are listed below; 

Grant Name Value (£’000) 

Education Improvement Grant 40,419 

Pupil Deprivation Grant 21,009 

Schools Challenge Cymru (Tranche 1 & 2) 1,977 

GCSE / Milan 909 

Pioneer Schools 488 

Regional Collaboration Fund 358 

Literacy, Numeracy & MFL 255 

New Deal Funding 200 

Modern Foreign Language 120 

Learning in Digital Capacity 83 

Learning in Digital CPD 71 

National Professional Qual of Headteachers 70 

GCSE Yr 9 Cross Curricula 70 

Welsh Baccalaureate 50 

Mathletics Primary Events 45 

Securing Teacher Assessment 34 

Mentoring for Headteachers 25 

Yr 6 National Numeracy Tests 5 

Total 66,188 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 118



 

 

100 

Central Team Budget for 2015-2016 

Annual Cost 
2015-2016 Budget Approved by Joint Committee 

(£000’s) 

CENTRAL COSTS  

Salaries 359 

Travel, Subsistence, Training & Development 10 

 369 

  

RUNNING COSTS  

Accommodation 29 

Stationary/Telephone/Printing/Equipment/IT 21 

Translation 35 

Conference Support / Programme Costs  10 

 95 

  

FACILITATION  

Infrastructure Agreements 40 

 40 

  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 504 

  

ANNUAL INCOME  

Local Authority Contributions 250 

Other Grants / Income 6 

Grant Support  191 

Local Authority Reserves 157 

TOTAL ESTIMATED INCOME 504 

  

NET EXPENDITURE - 

 

Local Authority Contributions 

Local Authority Contribution (£’s) 

Carmarthenshire 52,250 

Ceredigion 18,500 

Neath Port-Talbot 39,750 

Pembrokeshire 35,250 

Powys 36,000 

City and County of Swansea 68,250 

Total 250,000 

 

Page 119



 

 

101 

Annex 4: Categorisation   

Breakdown of schools as categorised in ERW 2015 – 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



 

 

102 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 121



 

 

Appendix 5: Performance Data  

Foundation Phase 

 

 

   

   
 

If a figure is coloured green, that LA was the highest performer in that 

subject in that year. 

 

If a figure is coloured red, that LA was the lowest performer in that 

subject in that year. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Powys '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 84.7 89.6 90.6

LCW 82.2 91.6 94.1

LCE 88.2 91.0 91.5

MDT 88.7 91.3 92.7

PSD 93.8 96.2 96.0

Pembrokeshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 84.5 88.7 89.2

LCW 85.5 91.8 90.1

LCE 87.0 89.4 91.1

MDT 88.4 91.6 91.7

PSD 94.0 95.7 96.1

Swansea '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 80.1 83.9 86.2

LCW 89.4 89.0 92.2

LCE 81.6 85.5 87.0

MDT 85.7 87.1 89.0

PSD 93.2 94.1 94.9

Ceredigion '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 85.9 87.9 92.2

LCW 88.1 90.6 93.8

LCE 85.0 88.1 94.0

MDT 90.7 90.5 94.5

PSD 96.0 95.9 98.1

Carmarthenshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 81.6 84.1 86.8

LCW 86.2 89.2 91.4

LCE 81.0 81.1 83.4

MDT 85.9 88.1 89.8

PSD 93.0 94.0 95.2

NPT '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 81.7 84.2 82.3

LCW 87.4 91.8 92.6

LCE 84.1 84.2 82.8

MDT 85.4 87.6 85.2

PSD 93.3 94.3 92.7

ERW '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 82.4 85.7 87.1

LCW 86.6 90.2 92.2

LCE 84.0 86.2 87.3

MDT 86.9 88.9 89.8

PSD 93.6 94.7 95.1

Wales '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

FPI 83.0 85.2 86.8

LCW 86.7 89.8 91.3

LCE 85.2 86.6 88.0

MDT 87.4 88.7 89.7

PSD 93.0 94.2 94.8

P
age 122



 

 

104 

Key Stage 2 

   

   
 

If a figure is coloured green, that LA was the highest performer in 

that subject in that year. 

 

If a figure is coloured red, that LA was the lowest performer in 

that subject in that year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

Powys '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 86.4 88.3 90.4

Welsh 84.3 92.9 96.6

English 88.5 90.3 91.9

Mathematics 89.1 90.3 92.5

Science 90.8 92.1 93.5

Pembrokeshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 82.8 88.7 88.6

Welsh 86.7 87.6 85.4

English 86.5 90.7 90.5

Mathematics 86.7 90.9 90.8

Science 90.7 93.2 92.9

Swansea '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 84.3 87.3 89.2

Welsh 91.2 89.5 92.9

English 87.4 88.8 90.9

Mathematics 86.9 89.8 91.3

Science 88.7 90.8 92.6

Ceredigion '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 87.3 89.1 90.3

Welsh 83.4 88.8 88.3

English 90.4 91.2 91.1

Mathematics 88.8 92.3 92.2

Science 91.7 93.6 92.7

Carmarthenshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 85.4 87.4 88.2

Welsh 84.5 84.4 88.6

English 87.2 90.0 90.0

Mathematics 88.1 89.7 90.4

Science 90.7 91.1 91.9

NPT '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 82.0 84.1 83.3

Welsh 91.0 87.7 90.1

English 85.5 86.3 85.3

Mathematics 85.5 86.9 85.8

Science 87.8 87.6 87.6

ERW '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 84.5 87.3 88.3

Welsh 85.8 87.3 89.5

English 87.3 89.3 89.9

Mathematics 87.4 89.7 90.4

Science 89.8 91.1 91.8

Wales '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 84.3 86.1 87.7

Welsh 86.7 88.1 90.5

English 87.1 88.4 89.6

Mathematics 87.5 88.9 90.2

Science 89.7 90.3 91.4

P
age 123



 

 

105 

Key Stage 3 

   

   
 

If a figure is coloured green, that LA was the highest performer in 

that subject in that year. 

 

If a figure is coloured red, that LA was the lowest performer in 

that subject in that year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Powys '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 83.0 86.5 89.3

Welsh 90.2 94.2 95.7

English 87.3 90.3 91.9

Mathematics 88.2 89.8 91.8

Science 90.5 94.4 94.6

Pembrokeshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 80.0 81.1 84.5

Welsh 90.2 95.3 90.9

English 85.1 85.8 88.6

Mathematics 85.9 87.4 88.6

Science 89.2 91.2 91.2

Swansea '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 76.4 80.6 83.2

Welsh 87.6 89.9 93.2

English 82.3 85.1 87.6

Mathematics 82.4 86.9 87.9

Science 85.9 89.8 90.2

Ceredigion '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 83.8 89.0 90.5

Welsh 89.4 89.8 90.8

English 89.1 90.5 93.4

Mathematics 86.9 91.5 92.8

Science 91.7 93.5 96.1

Carmarthenshire '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 77.1 84.5 85.1

Welsh 83.6 88.7 86.5

English 83.1 88.5 88.4

Mathematics 83.8 88.4 90.4

Science 86.2 91.1 91.9

NPT '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 73.1 73.1 77.8

Welsh 85.5 86.0 85.0

English 79.1 80.6 84.2

Mathematics 79.3 79.9 83.4

Science 82.8 84.3 87.8

ERW '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 78.1 81.7 84.3

Welsh 86.8 90.0 89.2

English 83.6 86.3 88.4

Mathematics 83.9 86.9 88.7

Science 87.1 90.3 91.4

Wales '12/13 '13/14 '14/15

CSI 77.0 81.0 83.9

Welsh 87.6 90.1 90.9

English 82.9 85.9 87.9

Mathematics 83.9 86.5 88.7

Science 87.0 90.4 91.8

P
age 124



 

 

 

 

 

 

FOUNDATION PHASE 

PERFORMANCE 
  

Page 125



 

 

107 

All Pupils 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 performance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 90.6 92.2 89.2 86.8 86.2 82.3

ERW 87.1 87.1 87.1 87.1 87.1 87.1

Wales 86.8 86.8 86.8 86.8 86.8 86.8

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank 4/22 1/22 =5/22 =10/22 =15/22 22/22

Page 126



 

 

108 

Boys 
 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 87.7 89.6 86.2 82.3 82.7 77.7

ERW 83.4 83.4 83.4 83.4 83.4 83.4

Wales 83.0 83.0 83.0 83.0 83.0 83.0

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 75.5 78.9 81.0 83.0

ERW 74.2 78.0 81.6 83.4

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Wales

ERW

Page 127



 

 

109 

eFSM Pupils 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Foundation Phase Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

 

  

Page 128



 

 

110 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KEY STAGE 2 

PERFORMANCE 
  

Page 129



 

 

111 

All Pupils 
 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 performance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 90.4 90.3 88.6 88.2 89.2 83.3

ERW 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3 88.3

Wales 87.7 87.7 87.7 87.7 87.7 87.7

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank 4/22 5/22 9/22 10/22 8/22 22/22

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 80.0 82.6 84.3 86.1 87.7

ERW 81.0 83.4 84.5 87.3 88.3

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Wales

ERW

Page 130



 

 

112 

Boys 
 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 86.8 88.9 86.8 85.9 86.4 79.2

ERW 85.5 85.5 85.5 85.5 85.5 85.5

Wales 84.9 84.9 84.9 84.9 84.9 84.9

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 76.2 79.4 81.4 83.1 84.9

ERW 77.7 80.4 81.3 83.8 85.5

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Wales

ERW

Page 131



 

 

113 

eFSM Pupils 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Page 132



 

 

114 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KEY STAGE 3 

PERFORMANCE 
  

Page 133



 

 

115 

All Pupils 
 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 performance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 89.3 90.5 84.5 85.1 83.2 77.8

ERW 84.3 84.3 84.3 84.3 84.3 84.3

Wales 83.9 83.9 83.9 83.9 83.9 83.9

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank 4/22 1/22 =9/22 8/22 14/22 22/22

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 68.0 72.5 77.0 81.0 83.9

ERW 69.8 74.4 78.1 81.7 84.3

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Wales

ERW

Page 134



 

 

116 

Boys 
 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 86.6 87.0 81.5 80.5 79.9 73.3

ERW 80.7 80.7 80.7 80.7 80.7 80.7

Wales 80.3 80.3 80.3 80.3 80.3 80.3

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

LA

ERW

Wales

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 63.0 67.2 72.4 76.8 80.3

ERW 64.4 68.9 73.1 78.4 80.7

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Wales

ERW

Page 135



 

 

117 

eFSM Pupils 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Core Subject Indicator in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Page 136



 

 

118 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KEY STAGE 4 

PERFORMANCE 
[FINAL] 

  

Page 137



 

 

119 

All Pupils 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold (5A*-C GCSEs or equivalent, including English/Welsh and Mathematics) in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 performance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank 4 6 =16 7 3 11

Page 138



 

 

120 

Boys 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold (5A*-C GCSEs or equivalent, including English/Welsh and Mathematics) in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Page 139



 

 

121 

eFSM Pupils 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold (5A*-C GCSEs or equivalent, including English/Welsh and Mathematics) in 2014/15 

 

 

 

% achieving Level 2+ Threshold in ERW compared with Wales 

 

  

Page 140



 

 

122 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRIMARY 

ATTENDANCE   

Page 141



 

 

123 

All Pupils 
 

% of sessions attended at primary schools in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 attendance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% attendance at ERW primary schools compared with Wales 

Wales figures’ also include primary age pupils within special schools 

  

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 95.7 95.7 95.0 95.2 94.9 94.8

ERW 95.1 95.1 95.1 95.1 95.1 95.1

Wales 94.9 94.9 94.9 94.9 94.9 94.9

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

LA

ERW

Wales

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank 3/22 2/22 =7/22 5/22 =9/22 =12/22

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 93.3 93.8 93.7 94.8 94.9

ERW 93.1 93.7 93.4 94.9 95.1

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

Wales

ERW

Page 142



 

 

124 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECONDARY 

ATTENDANCE 

  

Page 143



 

 

125 

% of sessions attended at secondary schools in 2014/15 

 

 

2014/15 attendance ranked against the other LAs in Wales 

 

 

 

% attendance at ERW secondary schools compared with Wales 

Wales figures’ also include secondary age pupils within special schools 

 

 

 

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

LA 94.7 94.5 93.2 94.2 94.0 93.7

ERW 94.0 94.0 94.0 94.0 94.0 94.0

Wales 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8 93.8

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

LA

ERW

Wales

Powys Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Swansea NPT

Rank =2/22 5/22 =17/22 9/22 10/22 =14/22

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Wales 91.4 92.2 92.6 93.6 93.8

ERW 91.4 92.3 92.5 93.7 94.0

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

Wales

ERW

Page 144



 

 

126 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

School Improvement Panel  
 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• To review the Panel’s work and update the Scrutiny Committee on the School 
Improvement Panel findings. 

 

Reasons:  
 

• To ensure that the Panel is challenging and holding school leaders to account. 
 

• At its meeting on the 17th November 2014, the Executive Board unanimously endorsed 
a proposal to establish a School Improvement Panel. The Panel’s Terms of Reference 
state that it must “produce an annual report on the Panel’s activity for consideration by 
the Executive Board and the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee” and “include 
any proposals or recommendations that the Panel considers could improve provision or 
performance”. 

 

• To enable members to exercise their scrutiny role in relation to performance 
monitoring. 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Gareth Jones (Education & Children)  
 

 
 
Directorate: 
Education & Children  
 
Name of Head of Service:  
Gareth Morgans 
 
 
Report Author:  
Gareth Morgans 
 

 
Designation:  
 
 
 
Chief Education Officer 
 

 
Tel No. / E-Mail Address: 
 
 
 
01267 246450 
edgmorgans@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  

  

Agenda Item 8

Page 147



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016 
 
 

School Improvement Panel  
 

 

 
The School Improvement Panel was established to enable the Executive Board Member 
for Education and Children’s Services and the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee to 
effectively discharge constitutional and statutory responsibilities for monitoring school 
performance, constantly striving to improve educational outcomes for our pupils. 
 
At its inaugural meeting in February 2015 the Terms of Reference agreed by the Executive 
Board were presented: 
 

• To support the Executive Board Member for Education and Children’s Services 
and the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee in effectively discharging their 
constitutional and statutory responsibilities for monitoring school performance, 
constantly striving to improve educational outcomes for our pupils. 

 

• To receive regular reports from the Director of Education and Children’s 
Services and his officers on all aspects of school performance and to assist in 
identifying areas for improvement. 

 

• To receive regular reports from ERW, the regional school improvement service, 
on its contribution to improving the performance of schools across 
Carmarthenshire, supporting the Director of Education and Children’s Services 
and Chief Education Officer in holding ERW to account in accordance with the 
National Model for Regional Working. 

 

• To scrutinise annually the outcomes of pupil achievements, including teacher 
assessments, national literacy and numeracy tests, external examinations and 
other pupil standards, e.g. Duke of Edinburgh Awards, etc, drawing lessons from 
areas of high performance to be shared elsewhere and identifying areas of 
under-performance requiring improvement. 

 

• To receive and discuss regular school categorisation reports from ERW and to 
support the Director of Education and Children’s Services and the Chief 
Education Officer in identifying priorities for attention within school improvement 
programmes. 

 

 
  

Page 148



 

 
 

 

• To receive copies of every ESTYN school inspection report following their 
publication and to summon the Chair of Governors and Headteacher of every 
school to appear before the Panel in order to hold the senior school leaders to 
account for the outcome of the inspection and further action required in 
response to it. 

 

• To receive reports from the Director of Education and Children’s Services and 
his officers on formal Warning Notices issued to schools causing concern and 
any subsequent formal intervention and to support the Director and his officers 
in securing the required outcomes. 

 

• In tandem with the Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding Panel to maintain an 
overview of safeguarding practice in schools, as a central aspect of school 
performance. 

 

• To produce an annual report on the Panel’s activity for consideration by the 
Executive Board and Education & Children Scrutiny Committee, to include any 
proposals or recommendations that the Panel considers could improve provision 
or performance. 

 
 
The attached report outlines the ‘learning’ from the Panel meetings to date and how to 
disseminate the good practice identified. 
 
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

 
YES 
 

 
  

Page 149



 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
 
Signed:  Gareth Morgans              Chief Education Officer      
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the School Improvement Panel’s 
Terms of Reference.  
 

 
2. Legal   
 
The School Improvement Panel was established to enable the Executive Board Member 
for Education and Children’s Services and the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee 
to effectively discharge constitutional and statutory responsibilities for monitoring school 
performance, constantly striving to improve educational outcomes for our pupils. It is 
important to sustain this Panel. 
     

 
 
 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
 
Signed:  Gareth Morgans              Chief Education Officer      
 

 
1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – The School Improvement 
Panel Report is scheduled to be presented to the Employee Relations Forum on the 8th 
November 2016. 
 

 

Page 150



 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection 

 
Enhancing democratic scrutiny 
and monitoring of Education 
and Children’s Services to 
support improvements in 
standards and safeguarding – 
E&C Scrutiny Committee (30th 
September 2014) 
 

 
Agenda:  
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EDUC20140930/index
.asp 
 
Minutes:  
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EDUC20140930/MIN
UTES.HTM 
 

 
Enhancing democratic scrutiny 
and monitoring of Education 
and Children’s Services to 
support improvements in 
standards and safeguarding – 
Carmarthenshire County 
Council’s Executive Board 
(17th November 2014) 
 

 
Agenda:  
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20141117/index
.asp  
 
Minutes:  
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20141117/MINU
TES.HTM#P106_7945 
 

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carmarthenshire County Council’s 

School                

Improvement                   

Panel 
 

 

Page 153



 
 

The School Improvement Panel was established to enable the County Council to 
effectively discharge constitutional and statutory responsibilities for monitoring school 
performance, constantly striving to improve educational outcomes for our pupils. 
 

At its inaugural meeting in February 2015 the following Terms of Reference were agreed- 

 

• To support the Executive Board Member for Education and Children’s Services and 
the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee in effectively discharging their 
constitutional and statutory responsibilities for monitoring school performance, 
constantly striving to improve educational outcomes for our pupils. 

 

• To receive regular reports from the Director of Education and Children’s Services and 
his officers on all aspects of school performance and to assist in identifying areas for 
improvement. 

 

• To receive regular reports from ERW, the regional school improvement service, on its 
contribution to improving the performance of schools across Carmarthenshire, 
supporting the Director of Education and Children’s Services and Chief Education 
Officer in holding ERW to account in accordance with the National Model for Regional 
Working. 

 

• To scrutinise annually the outcomes of pupil achievements, including teacher 
assessments, national literacy and numeracy tests, external examinations and other 
pupil standards, e.g. Duke of Edinburgh Awards, etc, drawing lessons from areas of 
high performance to be shared elsewhere and identifying areas of under-performance 
requiring improvement. 

 

• To receive and discuss regular school categorisation reports from ERW and to support 
the Director of Education and Children’s Services and the Chief Education Officer in 
identifying priorities for attention within school improvement programmes. 

 

• To receive copies of every ESTYN school inspection report following their publication 
and to summon the Chair of Governors and Headteacher of every school to appear 
before the Panel in order to hold the senior school leaders to account for the outcome 
of the inspection and further action required in response to it. 

 

• To receive reports from the Director of Education and Children’s Services and his 
officers on formal Warning Notices issued to schools causing concern and any 
subsequent formal intervention and to support the Director and his officers in securing 
the required outcomes. 

 

• In tandem with the Corporate Parenting and Safeguarding Panel to maintain an 
overview of safeguarding practice in schools, as a central aspect of school 
performance. 

 

• To produce an annual report on the Panel’s activity for consideration by the Executive 
Board and Education & Children Scrutiny Committee, to include any proposals or 
recommendations that the Panel considers could improve provision or performance. 

  

Page 154



 
 

Panel Membership  
 
Chair- Cllr. Gareth Jones, Executive Board Member for Education and Children’s 
Services 
 

Plaid Cymru  Labour  Independent  

• Peter Hughes 
Griffiths  

• Gareth Jones  

• Eirwyn Williams  

• Glynog Davies  

• Ryan Bartlett,  

• Terry Davies  

• Pat Jones  
 

• Giles Morgan,  

• Hugh Richards  

• Philip Hughes 
 

 
Officer support- 
 
Robert Sully, Director 
Gareth Morgans, Chief Education Officer 
Aeron Rees, Head of Learner Programmes 

Elin Forsythe, Principle Challenge 
Adviser 
Amanda Rees Davies, Support Officer 

 
Meeting Schedule and Focus 
 
To date the Panel has reviewed 13 schools/settings. 
 

DATE FOCUS SCHOOL/ISSUES LEAD 

26-02-15  • Terms of Reference 

• Carmarthenshire and ERW 
National Categorisation Outcomes 
Report 

• How does the School Improvement 
Team and ERW work with schools 
requiring support? 

Cllr. Gareth O Jones  
Gareth Morgans 
Andi Morgan 

14-05-15 Ysgol Queen Elizabeth High School Peter Spencer, Headteacher 
Trevor Routley, Chair of Governors 

Inspection outcomes Gareth Morgans 

8-07-15 
 

Ysgol Coedcae School Tracy Senchal, Headteacher 
Brian Davies, Chair of Governors 

Ysgol St. Mary’s School Olga Phelps 

15-10-15 
 

Ysgol Emlyn Secondary School Huw Thomas, Headteacher 

Hafodwenog/Bancyfelin/Meidrim 
Informal Federation 

Vicky Hart-Griffiths- Headteacher 

3-12-15 
 

Ysgol Glan-y-Mor Paul Jones, Headteacher 
Ms Wendy Jones, Assistant 
Headteacher 
Steve Mears, Chair of Governors 

Ysgol Brynaman Nick Jones, Headteacher 
Glynog Davies, Chair of Governors 

28-01-16 Reflection on meetings so far- main 
messages, main challenges. 

Cllr. Gareth O Jones 

19-04-16 Ysgol y Bedol Donna Williams, Headteacher 
Mari Thomas-Jones, Assistant 
Headteacher 
Haydn Timothy, Chair of Governors 

Page 155



 
 

Ysgol Penygaer Anthony Stevenson, Headteacher 

20-09-16 Ysgol Maes y Gwendraeth Wyn Evans, Headteacher 
Dafydd Jones, Chair of Governors 

20-09-16 Key Stages 3 and 4 Teaching and 
Learning Centre 

Jo Antonazzi, Head of PRU 
Nick Lloyd 

 

For every school presentation the following are prepared- 

• a school data pack with local, regional and national comparators 

• most recent ESTYN inspection report and recommendations 

• some suggested questions  

The meetings have been informative and interesting allowing Members to question and 
challenge school leaders and tease out the elements that make the difference and the 
challenges which impede success.  

These have been included in the table below. 

Positive/constructive aspects  Developmental issues 

• Strong leadership at all levels- 
Headteacher, Senior Management, 
departments, governors. 

• A clear vision which is owned by all / 
shared widely 

• Focus on welfare pupils- health, 
attendance 

• Pursuit of excellence at all times 

• A sense of team / collective 
responsibility 

• A flexible, interesting and tailored, 
curriculum which makes learning 
interesting 

• Work with schools / other providers 

• effective self-evaluation systems that 
uses evidence / data 

• Effective use of the Pupil Deprivation 
Grant to have a positive impact on 
standards 

• strong and effective relationships 
between primary and secondary (KS2-
KS3) 

• Focus on the learner 

• Review of the Governing Board's skills 
and recruiting the skills needed 

• Ensure support of parents and 
community 

• Sharing good practice with other 
schools 

• Develop good pupil/staff/parental 
relationship and a caring family ethos 

• Teamwork is paramount,  

• The role of the Governing Body/ 
Chair of the Governing Body 

• Tracking the progress of learners 

• Performance of specific groups of 
learners- ALN, LAC, EAL, e-FSM, 
MAT 

• Operate within budget/efficiency 
agenda 

• Working in a different way- share 
resources, optimizing resources 

• Federation to reduce the 
Headteacher’s workload in the 
governance of schools  

• Introduction of Welsh as a first 
language pathway in an English 
medium school. 

• Support for EAL and LAC learners 

• Ensure consistent high quality 
differentiated teaching  

• Support to develop and implement 
a rigorous self-evaluation model 

• Further support for schools on 
child protection issues. 

Page 156



 
 

• excellent learning support mechanisms 
encouraging positive results,  

• the staff to have high expectation of all 
learners 

• clear aim and vision for the school and 
its pupils 

• The learner come first and foremost 
and everything a school does do must 
reflect this single goal. 

• Every child is happy at school and 
happy to attend 

• All staff members buy into a constant 
self-evaluating system 

• Pupils are encouraged to self-
challenge  

• Child centred- the child is the centre of 
everything at the school with the 
school focused on preparing them for 
the future, and helping them to achieve 
their full potential. 

• Dedicated Family Engagement Officer- 
to meet with families and support them 
with issues. 

• Effective use of and development of 
skilled Teaching Assistants 

• Team approach across the school. 

• To gain stakeholders’/parents’ support  

• ‘School to school’ model on CPD 
issues, sharing good practice and 
improving skills  

 

Review of the Panel’s role 

Following the January 28th meeting the Executive Board Member for Education and 
Children’s Services requested that the Panel’s remit and function is reviewed in order that 
it becomes more challenging and more effective in holding school leaders to account for 
performance. This has led to more rigour and challenge in subsequent sessions. 

Dissemination of learning 

The Panel suggest that a dissemination conference be held in the Spring Term 2017 to 
share this learning and also the outcomes of the Members’ Task and Finish Group 
investigation into the performance of e-fsm learners. Good practice case studies have 
been identified via the School Improvement Panel sessions. 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016  
 
 

Education & Children Scrutiny Committee –  
Site Visit Activity Report 2015/16 

 

 

To consider and comment on the following issues: 
 

• That the Committee considers and comments on the attached activity report.  
 

Reasons:  
 

• At its meeting in on the 18th May 2015, the Committee resolved to continue with its 
programme of visits to schools and children’s services settings during the 2015/16 
academic year, as part of its forward work programme.   

 

• The visits also contribute to the Committee’s role in monitoring of key front-line 
services. 

 

 
To be referred to the Executive Board for decision: NO 
 

 

 
Executive Board Member Portfolio Holders: Cllr. Gareth Jones (Education & Children)  

 

 
 
Directorate: 
Chief Executive’s  
  
Name of Head of Service: 
Linda Rees-Jones  
 
 
Report Author:  
Matthew Hughes  
 

 
Designations: 
 
 
 
Head of Administration & Law  
 
 
 
Democratic Services Officer   

 
Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses: 
 
 
 
01267 224010 
lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 224029  
mahughes@carmarthenshire.gov.uk  
 

  

Agenda Item 9

Page 159



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN  

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10
th

 OCTOBER 2016  
 
 

Education & Children Scrutiny Committee –  
Site Visit Activity Report 2015/16 

  

 

 
During 2008/09, the Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee (as it was 
formerly known) established a Task & Finish Group to review Access, Inclusion and 
Support Services to Schools.  
 
As part of the Task & Finish Group review, members undertook a series of site visits to 
schools within the county in order to speak to head teachers and staff. The Group found 
these visits invaluable but timescales prevented the members from visiting more schools. 
Therefore, in its final report the Group recommended that a programme of structured 
school visits be developed for all members of the Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny 
Committee. The Committee considered the Group’s recommendation at its meeting on the 
8th May 2010 and unanimously resolved that local members, those who were school 
governors and the Executive Board Member be invited to attend a structured programme 
of visits to all schools and special units during the 2009/10 municipal year.  
 
The programme of visits has continued since this time and in all, the Committee has now 
visited all the County’s schools, as well as visiting other facilities such as children’s centres 
and special units.  
 
During the 2015/16 academic year, 19 schools / Children’s Services facilities were visited 
between October 2015 and June 2016.  
 
Feedback sessions were also held on the 21st January, 14th April, 17th June and 29th 
June 2016 in order for members and officers to discuss and review the visits undertaken. 
The Chair and Vice-Chair also met with the Director and Executive Board Member for 
Education & Children in November 2015, April 2016 and July 2016 to feed back on the 
Committee’s comments and any issues raised during the visits.  
 

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 

 
YES  
 

 
  

Page 160



 

 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report.  
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
NONE 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS 

 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
  
Signed:    Linda Rees-Jones 

 
Head of Administration & Law  

 
1. Local Member(s) – Local members, in addition to those members who are school 
governors at the relevant schools, were invited to join the Committee on its school visits. 
 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – Officers from the Education & 
Children’s Services and Technical Services Departments attended the school visits. 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

 
E&C Scrutiny 
Committee Forward 
Work Programme 
2015/16 (E&C Scrutiny 
Committee, 18th May 
2015)  
 

 
Report 
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EDUC20150518/REP08.HTM  
 
Minutes 
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EDUC20150518/MINUTES.HT
M  
 

 
E&CS Scrutiny 
Committee (8th May 
2009)  
 

 
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/ECSS20090508/MINUTES.HT
M  
 

 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Education & Children 
Scrutiny Committee  

 
Site Visit Activity Report 2015/16 

 
 

Page 163



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

1. Background to the visits 
 
During 2008/09, the Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee (as it was 
formerly known) established a Task & Finish Group to review Access, Inclusion and 
Support Services to Schools.  
 
As part of the Task & Finish Group review, members undertook a series of site 
visits to schools within the county in order to speak to head teachers and staff. The 
Group found these visits invaluable but timescales prevented the members from 
visiting more schools. Therefore, in its final report the Group recommended that a 
programme of structured school visits be developed for all members of the 
Education & Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. The Committee considered 
the Group’s recommendation at its meeting on the 8th May 2010 and unanimously 
resolved that local members, those who were school governors and the Executive 
Board Member be invited to attend a structured programme of visits to all schools 
and special units during the 2009/10 municipal year.  
 
The programme of visits has continued since this time and in all, the Committee has 
now visited all the County’s schools, as well as visiting other facilities such as 
children’s centres and special units. Please refer to the appendices (Section 7) for 
details of the schools and other facilities visited since 2009.  
 

 
2. Visits programme in 2015/16 

 
A programme was developed for the 2015/16 academic year with the visits 
continuing to focus on clusters of schools in particular areas in order to minimise 
travel costs.    
 
Visits were arranged by the Education & Children Department’s School 
Modernisation Team in conjunction with the Scrutiny & Consultancy Team. All local 
members, in addition to those members who are school governors at the relevant 
schools, were invited to join the Committee on its visits. Occasionally, other 
governors were also in attendance.  
 
The following 19 schools/children’s centres were visited between October 2015 and 
June 2016:  
 

Wednesday 7th October 2015 Cwrt Henri CP  
Nantgaredig CP 
Llangynnwr CP 
 

Tuesday 24th November 2015 Children’s Services, Morfa, Llanelli  
Tŷ Mair Family Centre, Burry Port 
 

Monday 8th February 2016 Peniel CP 
Cae'r Felin CP, Pencader 
Brynsaron CP (near Llandysul)   
 

Thursday 17th March 2016 Y Bedol CP, Garnant 
Dyffryn Aman Comprehensive 
 

Page 164



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

Tuesday 26th April 2016 Emlyn Comprehensive, Newcastle Emlyn 
Penboyr CP, Drefach-Felindre 

 

Tuesday 24th May 2016 Llanedi  
Hendy 
Tycroes  
 

Tuesday 14th June 2016 Bancffosfelen 
Pontyberem 
Llanddarog 
Y Fro, Llangyndeyrn 
 

Friday 24th June 2016 Tremoilet, Pendine 
Llanmiloe 
Laugharne 
 

 
 
During 2015/16, members were accompanied on their visits by the following 
officers:   
 

• Simon Davies (School Modernisation Manager, E&C Dept.)  

• Noeline Thomas (Service Manager - Early Years and Prevention, E&C Dept.) 

• Llinos Jones (Challenge Adviser – Team Leader, School Improvement Team, 
E&C Dept.) 

• Marian Morgan (Challenge Adviser – Team Leader, School Improvement Team, 
E&C Dept.) 

• Alun Rees (Challenge Adviser – Team Leader, School Improvement Team, E&C 
Dept.) 

• David Harries (Area Senior Inspector, Property Services, Technical Services 
Department)  

• Jason McGarrigle (Area Senior Inspector, Property Services, Technical Services 
Department) 

• Bob Conyard (Building Inspector, Property Services, Technical Services 
Department) 

• Officers from the Democratic Services Unit (Chief Executive’s Department)  
 
Feedback sessions were also held on the 21st January, 14th April, 17th June and 
29th June 2016 in order for members and officers to discuss and review the visits 
undertaken. The Chair and Vice-Chair also met with the Director and Executive 
Board Member for Education & Children in November 2015, April 2016 and July 
2016 to feed back on the Committee’s comments and any issues raised during the 
visits.  
 
For attendance details, please see Sections 5 and 6.  

Page 165



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

3. Summary of visits  
 
3.1 Ysgol Gynradd Cwrt Henri CP School  

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Marc Jones Capacity: 62 
Category: Welsh-Medium  Pupils: 46 
Last visit: N/A (first visit)    
 
Cwrt Henri School is located in the Tywi Valley, approximately half a mile north of 
A40, near Dryslwyn. The school consists of a traditional stone building with a small 
hard surfaced play area to the rear. A portable classroom is located in an adjacent 
grassy area behind the main school building. The school serves the areas of Cwrt 
Henri, Dryslwyn, Llanfynydd, Broad Oak, Capel Isaac and Llangathen. The 
Committee was welcomed by the Chair of Governors, Linda Evans. Members 
observed the morning assembly before receiving a presentation from the head 
teacher and viewing the facilities.   
 

 
3.2 Ysgol Gynradd Nantgaredig CP School 

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Steffan Griffiths Capacity: 214 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 210 
Last visit:  March 2012   
 
Nantgaredig School is situated on large grounds alongside Station Road, near the 
junction with the main Carmarthen-Llandeilo road (A40). The village, located 
between Carmarthen and Llandeilo, also serves the surrounding villages of Capel 
Dewi, Pont-ar-Gothi, Llanegwad, Felingwm and Felinwen.   
 
The current building was built in the mid-1970s and consists of a single storey 
structure with 8 classrooms, 2 rooms for the Welsh-medium Speech and Language 
Units (Infants and Juniors) and an IT suite. The speech and language units cater for 
pupils from a wide geographical area within Carmarthenshire. 

Page 166



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
The school also has a large assembly hall which is also used at dinner time. An 
additional extension was built in 2008 and this houses the reception class. 
Externally, there are various play areas for different age groups, garden and activity 
areas, in addition to a large hard-surfaced yard and playing field to the north of the 
building.  
 
Members were welcomed by Lloyd Thomas, Chair of the Governors and given a 
tour of the school, followed by a presentation.   
 
 

3.3 Ysgol Gynradd Llangynnwr CP School  
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Aled Davies Capacity: 357 
Category: Dual-Stream Pupils: 313 
Last visit:  May 2010   
 
The school is situated between Pen-y-Morfa Lane and Rhiw Babell in Llangynnwr 
on the outskirts of Carmarthen. The oldest school buildings date from around the 
1960s whilst the newer section was built in the late 1970s. The school also has a 
number of portable classrooms which were installed in 2002. The school has 
extensive playing fields adjacent to the main School buildings. 
 
The school is dual-stream, providing a bilingual education. There has been 
increasing demand for Welsh medium over the last few years and currently there 
are 3 classes in the English stream and 9 in the Welsh stream. The Head Teacher 
has been in post since January 2015. 
 
Members were welcomed by local member and school governor, Cllr. Elwyn 
Williams. They received a presentation from the Head Teacher before viewing the 
facilities. 
 
 

3.4 Children’s Services, Morfa, Llanelli 
 
A scrutiny-specific development session was held in November 2015 for members 
of the Committee, as part of the site visits programme. The development session 
was held in the Flying Start Offices, New Street, Llanelli where the Committee 
received presentations on the following:  
 

• Overview of the Flying Start Service 

• Overview of the Families First Programme & Team Around the Family (TAF) 
model 

Page 167



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

• Llanelli Women’s Aid – Case Study  
 

  
 
 

3.5 Tŷ Mair Family Centre, Burry Port 
 

  
 
Following its visit to the Children’s Services facilities in Llanelli, the Committee also 
visited the Tŷ Mair Family Centre in Burry Port. The Centre is currently located in 
one part of the former Burry Port Junior School. The Committee received an 
overview of the services provided at the centre as well as speaking with the Centre 
Manager and a representative from Plant Dewi.   

 
 
3.6 Ysgol Gynradd Brynsaron CP School, Saron (near Llandysul)  

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Elen Davies Capacity: 123 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 104 
Last visit:  March 2010   
 
Ysgol Brynsaron is located on the A484 between Rhos and the centre of Saron 
village (near Llandysul. The original building dates back to the early 1900s although 
modernisation work was completed at the school in 2009 in order to provide a new 
reception teaching block and a new Year 6 classroom. The modernisation work also 
included some other internal alterations, such as the addition of a computer room 

Page 168



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

and a library area and the installation of interactive whiteboards in every classroom. 
The school has two hard surfaced playing areas on both sides of the building as 
well as a large grassed playing area for team sports and other activities.  
 
The Committee received a presentation by the head teacher and was then given a 
tour of the school’s facilities. The Chair of Governors Rev. John Gillibrand as well 
as fellow governors Emyr Jones and Sion Mason-Evans were also present during 
the visit.  
 
 

3.7 Ysgol Gynradd Cae’r Felin CP School, Pencader  
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Tanya Morgans 

(Acting) 
Capacity: 142 

Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 100 
Last visit:  November 2009   
 
Cae’r Felin School is located in the middle of Pencader and was built in 1991. In 
2003, a new extension was built on to the infant classrooms, part of which is hired 
out to the local Cylch Meithrin. There is a hard surfaced playing area on one side of 
the school as well as a large playing field to which the school has access.  
 
Members were given a presentation by the acting head teacher followed by a tour 
of the premises. Following the tour, members had lunch at the school. The Chair of 
Governors, Mrs. Fioled Jones was also in attendance for this visit.    
 
 

3.8 Ysgol Gynradd Peniel CP School  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Angharad Jones Capacity: 121 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 119 
Last visit:  November 2009   
 
The school is located in the centre of Peniel village, off the main A485 Carmarthen 
to Lampeter road. The current school building was opened in September 2009, 
having replaced the former building. The new school has a variety of hard-surfaced 
playing areas and a grass playing field. The school serves the village of Peniel and 
the surrounding area including Bronwydd, Rhydargaeau and Pont-ar-Sais.  
 
 

Page 169



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

  
 
The modern building features many eco and sustainable systems such as using 
rainwater for flushing the toilets and solar panels to heat water. The multi-purpose 
hall with a portable stage system, is used as a cafeteria for the children, for physical 
education lessons and by various after school and community clubs. Each 
classroom has a dedicated cloakroom and toilet facilities which are accessible from 
the outside play areas. The school also features a separate community room for 
use by the community and the changing rooms are also used by local sports clubs 
at weekends.  
 
The Committee was given an overview of the school’s activities by the head teacher 
as well as the local member Cllr. Pam Palmer. Peniel School was the first school 
visited by the Committee when it commenced its programme of visits in November 
2009.  
 
 

3.9 Ysgol Y Bedol (CP) School, Garnant  
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Donna Williams Capacity: 396 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 366 
Last visit:  November 2010   
 
Ysgol y Bedol is located on Folland Road in Garnant and was officially opened in 
December 2005 by the then Welsh First Minister, Rhodri Morgan. The school was 
the second facility built as part of the Modernising Education Programme at a cost 
of £5.5m to replace the former Twyn Infants School and both Glanaman and 
Garnant primary schools. 
 
The school comprises of a single storey building which includes a community block 
and a hub area, which has the main school entrance, administration area and two 
teaching blocks linked to it. One block caters for three to seven-year-olds and the 
other for seven to 11-year-olds. A central top lit spine corridor gives access to 
playgrounds bringing light and air into the heart of the building, with classrooms 
ranged on one side. 

Page 170



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
The school hall is the size of three badminton courts in order to accommodate a 
range of indoor sports for both pupils and the community. An all-weather multi-use 
games pitch was also developed at the top part of the site and is enclosed and 
floodlit.  
 
The community section of the school enables a range of services to be provided for 
the local community. These include a library, IT facilities and a base for the 
Glanaman & Garnant Neighbourhood Policing Team.   
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Head Teacher and her deputy, 
followed by a tour of the facilities and a working lunch.  

 
 
3.10 Ysgol Dyffryn Aman, Ammanford   

 
Head Teacher: Mr. Stephen Perks   Capacity: 1588 
Category: Bilingual (2B) Pupils: 1576 
Last visit:  November 2010   
 
Ysgol Dyffryn Aman is a large school located on Margaret 
Street in Ammanford on a site shared with Ammanford 
Leisure Centre.   
 
The school building was the site of the former Amman 
Valley Grammar School but in 1970 it became Amman 
Valley Comprehensive School following the merger of 
Amman Valley Grammar and Amman Valley Secondary 
Modern Schools.  
 
In December, the school officially marked the completion of 
a £21m investment programme which involved a four-
phase development. This work included a new extension, 
the refurbishment of one of the existing buildings, plus two 
new buildings. The work was funded via the Council’s 
Modernising Education Programme, with part funding from 
the Welsh Government’s 21st Century Schools initiative. 
 
The extension houses a new sixth form common room, library, staff workrooms, 
science laboratories and a reception area. A Special Educational Needs facility 
known as ‘Canolfan Amanwy’, is located in one of the new buildings. Three new 
fields and a cricket pitch have been developed, along with new changing rooms and 
showers. 
  
The Committee was given an overview of 
the school’s performance by the head 
teacher.   

  

Page 171



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

3.11 Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn, Newcastle Emlyn  
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Hugh Thomas Capacity: 642 
Category: English-Medium with 

significant use of Welsh   
Pupils: 550 

Last visit: March 2010   
 
Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn is located next to the leisure centre, overlooking the town of 
Newcastle Emlyn. The school was established in 1984 following the re-organisation 
of secondary education provision in the area, although parts of the school were built 
in 1955. The new block built at the school at reorganisation provides teaching 
facilities for Mathematics, Science, Geography, Modern Languages, Special Needs, 
Music, Art and Food Technology. In the main block, which housed the former 
Secondary Modern School, are located the administrative offices, main hall and 
canteen, Gymnasium, Library and Information Technology suite, with classrooms 
for teaching English, Welsh, Resistant Material Technology and Textiles, together 
with a fourth Science Laboratory.  
 
 

3.12 Ysgol Gynradd Penboyr (VAP) School, Drefach-Felindre     
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Dr. Carol James   Capacity: 101 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 112 
Last visit:  March 2010   
 
Penboyr Church in Wales Voluntary Aided School is situated next to St. Barnabas 
Church in the centre of Drefach-Felindre, near Newcastle Emlyn. The original 
building dates from 1866 whilst an extension was added in 1991. An additional 
portable classroom was also located on the site in 1999. The school serves the 
village and surrounding areas of Cwmpengraig, Cwmhiraeth, Penboyr and 
Waungilwen. The school has a large area of land to the rear of the main building 
comprising of a hard-surfaced yard and grassed playing area. There is also a 
separate playing area for the Foundation Phase.  

Page 172



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
3.13 Tycroes CP School   

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Elfed Wood Capacity: 206 
Category: English-Medium Pupils: 210 
Last visit:  March 2010    
 
Tycroes School is located on Pontarddulais Road (the A483) and was opened in 
1902. In 1968 the original school building was modernised and improved with three 
new classrooms being renovated. However, during 2011/12, further re-modelling 
work was carried out and new extensions were built. This work included 
improvements to the roof of the existing building, site access and car parking, in 
addition to the erection of new fencing and development of new playground areas. 
The new facilities were officially opened in July 2012.  
 
 

3.14 Llanedi CP School    
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Miss Sian Rees (Acting) Capacity: 44 
Category: English-Medium Pupils: 20 
Last visit:  March 2010    
 
Llanedi is a small school located on the edge of village, approximately 3 miles north 
of Pontarddulais. The school was established in 1926 and consists of a small 
single-storey building surrounded by a yard and large playing field to the rear. It has 
two classrooms, one for the foundation phase while the other is for the junior class. 
The school has its own kitchen where meals are cooked on a daily basis. 
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close the school at its meeting in March 
2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to Llanedi, before it 
made any recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the future of the 
school.  
 

Page 173



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

3.15 Ysgol Gynradd Yr Hendy CP School    
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Rhian Kenny Capacity: 197 
Category: Dual-Stream Pupils: 163 
Last visit:  October 2011    
 
Hendy CP School is located on Iscoed Road approximately half a mile from 
Junction 48 of the M4.  
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close Llanedi School at its meeting in 
March 2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to Hendy, before 
it made any recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the future of 
Llanedi.  
 
The school was established in 1912 and consists of one main building, set back off 
the main road. The building has 9 classrooms and an assembly hall, in addition to a 
number of out-buildings. The school also has a large outdoor hard-surfaced 
playground and a playing field.  
 
 

3.16 Ysgol Gynradd Llanddarog VCP School    
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Meinir Jones Capacity: 94 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 98 
Last visit: May 2013   
 
Llanddarog is a voluntary controlled primary school and is located on the main road 
through the village (B4310).  
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close Bancffosfelen School at its meeting 
in March 2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to 
Llanddarog, before it made any recommendations to the Executive Board regarding 
the future of Bancffosfelen.  

Page 174



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
The main school building is of traditional build dating from the mid-1800s and 
houses the staff room and junior classrooms. In addition, there are two portable 
classrooms (for the infants) and a single storey multi-purpose hall. The hall serves a 
variety of uses including breakfast club, dinner, physical education and after school 
clubs. There is also a hard surfaced playing area next to the main school building 
and a large playing field to the rear of the site. The Committee noted that since its 
last visit, the hall has been refurbished and toilets added so that pupils did not need 
to cross the yard to the main school building. 
 

 
3.17 Ysgol Gynradd Bancffosfelen CP School    

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mr. Gareth Owen (Temporary) Capacity: 98 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 35 
Last visit:  July 2010   
 
Bancffosfelen School is located on Heol-y-Banc, close to the village hall.  
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close the school at its meeting in March 
2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to Bancffosfelen, 
before it made any recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the future of 
the school.  
 
The school building is made up of two main parts, namely the old traditional school 
building which was built in 1887 and the newer temporary block which was erected 
in the 1960-70s. There is a large hard surfaced yard and playing field next to the 
building. The Committee noted that the head teacher of Pontyberem School 
currently looked after the school, spending a day and a half in Bancffosfelen.  
 

 
3.18 Ysgol Gynradd Pontyberem CP School    

 
Head Teacher: Mr. Gareth Owen Capacity: 240 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 227 
Last visit:  July 2010   
 
Pontyberem School is situated in large grounds off Heol-y-Parc in the centre of the 
village.  
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close Bancffosfelen School at its meeting 
in March 2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to 

Page 175



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

Pontyberem, before it made any recommendations to the Executive Board 
regarding the future of Bancffosfelen.  
 

  
 
The present school was established in 1984 following the amalgamation of the 
village’s infant and junior schools. The building had been built as a comprehensive 
school in the 1960s and provides ample room for primary education needs. The 
large grounds and sports facilities are regularly used by local sports clubs and due 
to the large playing area, the school also hosts the annual Mynydd Mawr sports day 
where primary schools from the local area compete in various track and field 
events.  

 
 
3.19 Ysgol Y Fro (CP) School, Llangyndeyrn     

 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Diane Thomas (Acting) Capacity: 41 
Category: Welsh-Medium Pupils: 34 
Last visit:  October 2013   
 
Ysgol y Fro was founded in 1996 as a federated school and consisted of three 
units, one in Llangyndeyrn, one in Idole and the other in Llansaint. Following the 
closure of the Llansaint Unit in 2009, the infant children were educated at 
Llangyndeyrn whilst the juniors were based in Idole. However, since the 
Committee’s last visit in October 2013, the Idole Unit has closed (September 2014) 
and all pupils based in Llangyndeyrn.  
 
Following consideration of a proposal to close Bancffosfelen School at its meeting 
in March 2016, the Committee had requested that a visit be arranged to Y Fro, 
before it made any recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the future of 
Bancffosfelen.  
 
The school is located on the northern edge of the village, off the B4306 road 
between Pontyberem and Carmarthen. The site is accessed via a narrow track with 
the building and grounds built into the side of the hill overlooking the village. The 

Page 176



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

school building consists of three main classrooms (one of which is used by the 
Cylch Meithrin) and a toilet block. There is a hard surfaced play area alongside the 
school building with a variety of outdoor play houses for the youngest children.  
 
 

3.20 Tremoilet VCP School    
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Jayne Thomas (Acting) Capacity: 64 
Category: English-Medium (with significant 

use of Welsh) 
Pupils: 49 

Last visit:  April 2010   
 
Tremoilet is a Church in Wales school and is located on the Pendine to Amroth 
road, above the main part of the village.  
 
Following the Executive Board’s decision to defer consideration of the future of 
Tremoilet School in March 2016, the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee had 
then requested that a visit be arranged to the Tremoilet, before it made any 
recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the school’s future.  
 
The original school was established in St Lawrence’s Church in Marros in 1840 
whilst the current school building dates back to 1875. The main school building 
houses the hall and staff/admin room whilst the infants’ class is housed in a 
temporary extension that was installed approximately 25 years ago. The junior class 
is located in a portable classroom attached to the main building. The kitchen 
provides meals for the pupils and is located in a single storey building which is also 
linked to the main hall. The school has a hard surfaced playing area as well as a 
large playing field (leased to the school by the neighbouring farm).  
 
 

3.21 Llanmiloe CP School  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Mallt Lewis (Acting)   Capacity: 65 
Category: English-Medium   Pupils: 37 
Last visit:  April 2010   
 
Llanmiloe CP School is located alongside the A4066 between Laugharne and 
Pendine, opposite the Qinetiq Defence Establishment.  
 
Following the Executive Board’s decision to defer consideration of the future of 
Llanmiloe School in March 2016, the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee had 
then requested that a visit be arranged to the Llanmiloe, before it made any 
recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the school’s future.  

Page 177



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 
 

  
 
The building is a long and narrow single-storey building, of single brick construction 
which dates back to the early post-war years. The school and surrounding homes 
were built by the Ministry of Defence for its workers at the Llanmiloe site. The 
school has large grounds with a yard / playing area running the whole length of the 
building and a playing field below it, next to the main road.  
 
 

3.22 Laugharne VCP School  
 

  
 
Head Teacher: Mrs. Kimberley Perry   Capacity: 118 
Category: English-Medium (with significant use of 

Welsh) 
Pupils: 61 

Last visit:  April 2010   
 
Laugharne School is located off Orchard Park and was partly re-built in 2004 with 
the addition of a new spacious extension. The older part of the school, built in the 
1960s, houses the hall / canteen.  
 
Following the Executive Board’s decision to defer consideration of the future of 
Laugharne School in March 2016, the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee 
had then requested that a visit be arranged to the Laugharne, before it made any 
recommendations to the Executive Board regarding the school’s future 
 
The school has use of the Laugharne Athletic playing fields at the rear of the 
building for team sports and outdoor activities.  

 
  

Page 178



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

4. Conclusion 
 
As in previous years, the visits undertaken by the Committee during 2015/16 gave 
members an opportunity to view a wide variety of schools within the county. The 
visits also provided members with further opportunities to:  
 

• Speak with staff, pupils and governors 

• Discuss issues of concern with staff and governors  

• Hear about the challenges faced by teaching staff in their day to day work  

• Understand the different challenges facing schools in different parts of the 
county  

• View the condition of existing school buildings and facilities 

• View and experience the new school facilities being built in the county  
 
Whilst the visits to date have been invaluable in informing members’ discussions at 
committee meetings, members have developed the visits further by focusing on 
school performance and standards. It is envisaged that future visits will continue to 
be linked with the School Performance Panel’s work programme and recent ESTYN 
school inspections.   
 
During the year, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Committee have continued to meet 
with the Executive Board Member for Education & Children, as well as the Director 
of Education & Children. The purpose of these meetings is to discuss the strategic 
issues and concerns arising from recent visits.   
 
It should also be noted that the visits would not have been possible were it not for 
the co-operation of the schools and staff of the children’s centres. Members and 
local authority staff are thankful to the head teachers, governors and staff for their 
time and willingness to welcome and accommodate the visits.   
 
 

Page 179



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

5. Visit Attendance 2015/16 
 

Date Schools Visited Committee / EB Member 
Present 

Local Member(s) Governor(s)  Officer(s) 

 
Wednesday 7th 
October 2015 

 
Cwrt Henri  
 
Nantgaredig 
 
Llangynnwr  

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams  
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett  
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Terry Davies 
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. John James 
Cllr. Pat Jones 
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Cllr. Gareth Jones (EBM) 
 

 
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
(Llanegwad)  
 
Cllr. Elwyn Williams 
(Llangynnwr)  
 

 
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
(Nantgaredig)  
 
Cllr. Elwyn Williams 
(Llangynnwr)  
 

 
Simon Davies (E&C 
Department) 
 
David Harries 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Bernadette Dolan (DS 
Unit)  

 
Tuesday 24th 
November 2015 

 
Children’s Services, Morfa, 
Llanelli  
 
Tŷ Mair Family Centre, Burry 
Port 
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams  
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. John James 
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Cllr. Gareth Jones (EBM) 
 

 
Cllr. John James (Burry 
Port)  

  
Noeline Thomas (E&C 
Department)  
 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 
 
 
 

 
Monday 8th 
February 2016 

 
Brynsaron (near Llandysul)   
 
Cae'r Felin, Pencader 
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett  
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies  
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  

 
Cllr. Pam Palmer 
(Abergwili)   
 

 
Rev. John Gillibrand 
(Brynsaron)  
  
Mr. Emyr Jones 

 
Marian Morgan (E&C 
Department)  
 
Alun Rees (E&C 

P
age 180



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

Date Schools Visited Committee / EB Member 
Present 

Local Member(s) Governor(s)  Officer(s) 

Peniel 
 

Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Cllr. Gareth Jones (EBM) 
 

(Brynsaron) 
 
Mr. Sion Mason-Evans 
(Brynsaron)  
   
Mrs. Fioled Jones 
(Cae’r Felin)  
 

Department) 
 
David Harries 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

 
Thursday 17th 
March 2016 

 
Y Bedol, Garnant 
 
Dyffryn Aman Comprehensive, 
Ammanford 
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett  
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies  
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Gareth Jones (EBM)  
 

 
Cllr. Kevin Madge 
(Garnant)  

 
Cllr. Kevin Madge (Y 
Bedol)  
 
Cllr. David Jenkins (Y 
Bedol and Ysgol 
Dyffryn Aman)  
 
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett 
(Ysgol Dyffryn Aman)  

 
David Harries 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

 
Tuesday 26th 
April 2016 

 
Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn, Newcastle 
Emlyn 
 
Penboyr, Drefach-Felindre 

 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett  
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. John James  
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Kate Hill (Parent Governor 
Rep.)  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Gareth Jones (EBM)   
 

 
Cllr. Hazel Evans 
(Cenarth)  
 
Cllr. Ken Howell 
(Llangeler)  

 
Cllr. Hazel Evans 
(Emlyn)  
 
Rev. John Gillibrand 
(Penboyr)    
 

 
David Harries 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

P
age 181



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

Date Schools Visited Committee / EB Member 
Present 

Local Member(s) Governor(s)  Officer(s) 

 
Tuesday 24th 
May 2016 

 
Llanedi  
 
Hendy 
 
Tycroes  
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies  
Cllr. Peter Hughes-Griffiths  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins  
Cllr. John James  
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Kate Hill (Parent Governor 
Rep.)  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Mrs. Alex Pickles (Parent 
Governor Rep.) 
Gareth Jones (EBM)   
 

 
Cllr. Gareth Thomas 
(Hendy)  

 
Mrs. Eirwen Thomas 
(Llanedi)  
 
Mrs. Elinor Williams 
(Llanedi)  
 
Cllr. Gareth Thomas 
(Hendy)  
 
 

 
David Harries 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Bob Jeffery 
(Environment Dept.)  
 
Llinos Jones (E&C 
Department)  
 
Jason McGarrigle 
(Environment Dept.) 
 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

 
Tuesday 14th 
June 2016 

 
Llanddarog 
 
Bancffosfelen 
 
Pontyberem 
 
Y Fro, Llangyndeyrn 
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Ryan Bartlett  
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins 
Cllr. John James   
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Kate Hill (Parent Governor 
Rep.)  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
Mrs. Alex Pickles (Parent 
Governor Rep.) 
 
 
 

 
Cllr. Wyn Evans 
(Llanddarog)  
 
Cllr. Joy Williams 
(Pontyberem)  
 
Cllr. Tyssul Evans 
(Llangyndeyrn)  

 
Cllr. Joy Williams 
(Pontyberem and 
Bancffosfelen)  

 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

P
age 182



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

Date Schools Visited Committee / EB Member 
Present 

Local Member(s) Governor(s)  Officer(s) 

 
Friday 24th 
June 2016 

 
Tremoilet, Pendine 
 
Llanmiloe 
 
Laugharne 
 

 
Cllr. Eirwyn Williams   
Cllr. Cefin Campbell  
Cllr. Mansel Charles 
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies  
Cllr. Gwyn Hopkins 
Cllr. Jean Lewis 
Cllr. Hugh Richards 
Cllr. Tom Theophilus  
Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Rep). 
 

 
Cllr. Jane Tremlett 
(Laugharne Township)  

 
Cllr. Jane Tremlett 
(Tremoilet and 
Laugharne)  
 
Mr. Jamie Rugg 
(Llanmiloe)  

 
Matthew Hughes (DS 
Unit)  
 

P
age 183



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

6. Attendance at Feedback / Discussion Meetings  
 

Date 
 

Committee Members Present Officer(s) 

 
21st January 2016  

 
Councillors Ryan Bartlett, Mansel Charles, Gwyn Hopkins, Peter 
Hughes-Griffiths, John James, Jean Lewis, Tom Theophilus, 
Eirwyn Williams, Gareth Jones (EBM) as well as Mrs. Vera Kenny 
(RC Church Representative)  
 

 
Matthew Hughes (DS Unit)    
 

 
14th April 2016  

 
Councillors Ryan Bartlett, Cefin Campbell, Mansel Charles, Gwyn 
Hopkins, Peter Hughes-Griffiths, Jean Lewis, Hugh Richards, 
Tom Theophilus, Eirwyn Williams, as well as Mrs. Vera Kenny 
(RC Church Representative), Mrs Emma Heyes and Mrs. Kate Hill 
(Parent Governor Representatives)    
 
 

 
Matthew Hughes (DS Unit)    
 

 
17th June 2016  
 

 
Councillors Ryan Bartlett, Cefin Campbell, Mansel Charles, Gwyn 
Hopkins, Peter Hughes-Griffiths, John James, Jean Lewis, Hugh 
Richards, Tom Theophilus, Eirwyn Williams, as well as Mrs. Vera 
Kenny (RC Church Representative), Mrs. Kate Hill and Mrs. Alex 
Pickles (Parent Governor Representatives)    
 

 
Matthew Hughes (DS Unit)    
 

 
29th June 2016  

 
Councillors Ryan Bartlett, Mansel Charles, Ieuan Davies, Gwyn 
Hopkins, Peter Hughes-Griffiths, Jean Lewis, Tom Theophilus, 
Eirwyn Williams, as well as Mrs. Vera Kenny (RC Church 
Representative)  
 

 
Matthew Hughes (DS Unit)    
 

 
 
 

P
age 184



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7. Appendices 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 – Details of all schools visited during 2009/10  
 
7.2 Appendix 2 – Details of all schools visited during 2010/11  
 
7.3 Appendix 3 – Details of all schools visited during 2011/12  
 
7.4 Appendix 4 – Details of all schools visited during 2012/13  
 
7.5 Appendix 5 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2013/14  
 
7.6 Appendix 6 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2014/15  
 
7.7 Appendix 7 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2015/16 
 
 
 

Page 185



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.1 Appendix 1 – Details of all schools visited during 2009/10  
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Friday 13th November 2009 Peniel CP  Abergwili  WM 

 Ysgol Cae’r Felin CP, Pencader  Llanfihangel-ar-Arth WM 

 Llanllwni VCP  Llanfihangel-ar-Arth WM 

 Ysgol Carreg Hirfaen CP, Cwmann Llanybydder  WM 

    

Thursday 10th December 2009 Dyffryn Taf Comprehensive School, Whitland Whitland EM (Secondary) 

 Whitland CP Whitland  DS 

 Ysgol Beca CP, Efailwen  Llanboidy  WM 

 Ysgol Bro Brynach CP, Llanboidy  Llanboidy  WM 

    

Thursday 11th March 2010 Brynsaron CP, Saron (Llandysul)  Llangeler  WM 

 Penboyr VAP, Drefach-Felindre Llangeler  WM 

 Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn, Newcastle Emlyn Cenarth  EM (Secondary) 

 Ysgol y Ddwylan CP, Newcastle Emlyn Cenarth  WM 

    

Monday 29th March 2010 Llanedi CP Hendy  EM 

 Pen-y-Groes CP Pen-y-Groes WM 

 Saron CP Saron  TR 

 Tycroes CP Tycroes  EM 

    

Friday 23rd April 2010 Tremoilet VCP, Pendine Laugharne Township  EM 

 Llanmiloe CP  Laugharne Township  EM 

 Laugharne VCP Laugharne Township  EM 

 Ysgol Griffith Jones CP, St. Clears St. Clears  DS 

    

Monday 24th May 2010 Abergwili VCP Abergwili  WM 

 Richmond Park CP, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town South  EM 

 Llangynnwr CP School Llangynnwr  DS 

P
age 186



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

    

Friday 18th June 2010 Ysgol y Castell, Kidwelly  Kidwelly  EM 

 Burry Port Infants School Pembrey  EM 

 Burry Port Juniors School  Burry Port  EM 

 Glan-y-Môr Comprehensive, Burry Port Pembrey   EM (Secondary) 

    

Wednesday 7th July 2010 Pontyberem CP School  Pontyberem  WM 

 Bancffosfelen CP School Pontyberem  WM 

 
  

P
age 187



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.2 Appendix 2 – Details of all schools visited during 2010/11  
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Tuesday 16th November 2010 Amman Valley Comprehensive, Ammanford Ammanford  CB (Secondary)  

 Ysgol Y Bedol CP, Garnant  Garnant  TR 

 Brynaman CP Cwarter Bach  WM 

    

Monday 29th November 2010 Ffairfach CP School (near Llandeilo)  Llandeilo  WM 

 Tre-Gib Comprehensive School, Ffairfach Llandeilo  CB (Secondary) 

    

Monday 14th February 2011  Johnstown CP School, Carmarthen  Carmarthen Town South  EM 

 Queen Elizabeth High School, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town South  EW (Secondary) 

    

Friday 18th March 2011 Cross Hands CP School  Llannon  WM 

 Llechyfedach CP School Llannon WM 

 Llannon CP School Llannon  WM 

 Tumble CP School Llannon  WM 

    

Wednesday 18th May 2011 Hafodwenog CP School, Trelech  Trelech  WM 

 Meidrim CP School Trelech  WM 

 Abernant CP School Trelech  WM 

 Bancyfelin CP School St. Clears  WM 

    

Friday 17th June 2011 Llanybydder CP School  Llanybydder  WM 

 Rhydcymerau CP School  Llanybydder  WM 

 Llansawel CP School  Cynwyl Gaeo WM 

 Talley CP School Manordeilo a Salem  WM 

    

Wednesday 22nd June 2011 Bigyn CP School, Llanelli  Bigyn EM 

 Maes-y-Morfa CP School, Llanelli Glan-y-Môr  EW 

  

P
age 188



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.3 Appendix 3 – Details of all schools visited during 2011/12  
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Monday 3rd October 2011  Hendy CP School Hendy DS 

 Llangennech Infants School Llangennech  DS 

 Llangennech Junior School Llangennech  DS 

 Bryn CP School  Llangennech  EM 

 Brynsierfel CP School, Llanelli Llwynhendy  WM 

    

Thursday 17th November 2011  Pwll CP School  Hengoed EM 

 Five Roads CP School  Glyn  WM 

 Trimsaran CP School  Trimsaran  DS 

 Pembrey CP School Pembrey  EM 

    

Friday 25th November 2011  Heol Goffa Special School, Llanelli Elli  Special 

 Ysgol Y Felin CP, Llanelli Felinfoel DS 

    

Friday 3rd February 2012  Myrddin CP School, Carmarthen  Carmarthen Town North  EM 

 Ysgol-y-Dderwen CP, Carmarthen  Carmarthen Town North  WM  

 Ysgol Gyfun Bro Myrddin, Carmarthen St. Ishmael  AB (Secondary)  

    

Tuesday 28th February 2012  Carwe CP School  Llangyndeyrn  WM 

 Gwynfryn CP School, Pont-iets Llangyndeyrn  WM 

 Pont-iets CP School  Glyn WM 

 Pont-Henri CP School Glyn WM 

    

Friday 16th March 2012 Nantgaredig CP School  Llanegwad WM 

 Brechfa CP School Llanegwad WM 

 
  

P
age 189



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.4 Appendix 4 – Details of all schools visited during 2012/13  
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Tuesday 16th October 2012 Bynea CP Bynea EM 

 Bryn Teg CP, Llanelli Llwynhendy EM 

 Halfway CP, Llanelli Dafen EM 

 Dafen CP, Llanelli Dafen  EM 

    

Wednesday 14th November 2012 Betws CP Betws TR 

 Ammanford Nursery Ammanford DS 

 Parcyrhun CP, Ammanford Ammanford DS 

 Llandybie CP  Llandybie  TR 

    

Monday 25th February 2013 Ysgol Gyfun y Strade, Llanelli Hengoed  AB (Secondary) 

 Old Road CP, Llanelli Lliedi EM 

 Swiss Valley CP, Llanelli Swiss Valley  EW 

 Stebonheath CP, Llanelli Bigyn  EW 

    

Wednesday 20th March 2013 Cynwyl Elfed CP  Cynwyl Elfed WM 

 Llanpumsaint CP Cynwyl Elfed  WM 

    

Tuesday 30th April 2013  Ysgol Gymraeg Rhydaman Ammanford WM 

 Bro Banw CP, Ammanford  Ammanford DS 

    

Wednesday 22nd May 2013  Llanddarog VCP Llanddarog  WM 

 Maes-y-Bont CP Llanfihangel Aberbythych  WM 

 Blaenau CP Pen-y-Groes  WM 

 
  

P
age 190



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Wednesday 19th June 2013 Llanwrda CP Cil-y-Cwm  WM 

 Llangadog CP Llangadog  WM 

    

Monday 8th July 2013 Llangain CP  Llansteffan  WM 

 Llansteffan CP Llansteffan  WM 

 
  

P
age 191



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.5 Appendix 5 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2013/14  
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Wednesday 2nd October 2013 Y Fro CP (Llangyndeyrn Unit) Llangyndeyrn  WM 

 Y Fro CP (Idole Unit) St. Ishmaels WM 

 Ferryside VCP St. Ishmaels WM 

    

Monday 11th November 2013 Model VAP, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town West EM 

 Rhyd-y-Gors Special School, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town South Special  

    

Wednesday 5th February 2014 Felinfoel Children’s Centre, Llanelli  Felinfoel  N/A 

 Penygaer CP, Llanelli  Lliedi  EM 

 Bryngwyn Comprehensive, Llanelli Dafen  EM 

    

Wednesday 19th March 2014 Gorslas CP Gorslas WM 

 Cefneithin CP Gorslas WM 

 Drefach CP Gorslas WM 

    

Friday 4th April 2014 Richmond Park, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town South EM 

 St. Mary’s RCP, Carmarthen Carmarthen Town West EM 

    

Monday 19th May 2014 Morfa Family Centre, Llanelli  Glan-y-Môr  N/A 

 Maes-y-Morfa CP School, Llanelli  Glan-y-Môr EM 

 Pentip VAP, Llanelli Elli  EM 

 Coedcae Comprehensive, Llanelli Bigyn  EM 

    

Friday 20th June 2014 Llwynhendy Family Centre, Llanelli  Llwynhendy  N/A 

 St. Mary’s RCP, Llanelli Dafen  EM 

 St. John Lloyd RC Comprehensive, Llanelli Dafen  EM 

 
  

P
age 192



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.6 Appendix 6 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2014/15 
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Wednesday 22nd October 2014 Mynydd-y-Garreg CP School Kidwelly WM 

 Maes-y-Gwendraeth Secondary School 
(Drefach and Cefneithin Campuses) 

Drefach  2A (Secondary)  

    

Monday 10th November 2014 Llansadwrn CP School  Cil-y-Cwm WM 

 Rhys Prichard CP School, Llandovery  Llandovery  TR 

 Bro Dinefwr Secondary School (Pantycelyn 
Campus) 

Llandovery  2B (Secondary) 

    

Wednesday 4th February 2015 Ysgol Y Felin, Llanelli Felinfoel  DS 

 Ysgol Ffwrnes, Llanelli  Hengoed WM 

 Ysgol Brynsierfel, Llanelli Llwynhendy  WM 

    

Thursday 19th March 2015 Copperworks Infant CP, Llanelli Tŷ-Isha  EM 

 Lakefield CP, Llanelli Tŷ-Isha  EM 

 Ysgol Dewi Sant, Llanelli Lliedi  WM 

    

Wednesday 22nd April 2015  Ysgol Gymraeg Gwenllian, Kidwelly Kidwelly  WM 

 Ysgol Gymraeg Parc-y-Tywyn, Burry Port Pembrey  WM 

    

Tuesday 19th May 2015  Ysgol Gymraeg Teilo Sant, Llandeilo Llandeilo  WM 

 Llandeilo CP School Llandeilo  EM 

 
  P

age 193



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

7.7 Appendix 7 – Details of all schools / children’s centres visited during 2015/16 
 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Wednesday 7th October 2015 Cwrt Henri  Llanegwad WM  

 Nantgaredig Llanegwad WM  

 Llangynnwr Llangynnwr  DS 

    

Tuesday 24th November 2015 Children’s Services, Morfa, Llanelli  Glan-y-Môr  N/A  

 Tŷ Mair Family Centre, Burry Port Burry Port  Family Centre  

    

Monday 8th February 2016 Brynsaron  Llangeler  WM  

 Cae'r Felin, Pencader Llanfihangel-ar-Arth  WM  

 Peniel Abergwili  WM  

    

Thursday 17th March 2016 Y Bedol, Garnant Garnant  WM  

 Dyffryn Aman Comprehensive, Ammanford Ammanford  2B (Secondary)   

    

Tuesday 26th April 2016 Ysgol Gyfun Emlyn, Newcastle Emlyn Cenarth EM (Secondary)  

 Penboyr, Drefach-Felindre Llangeler WM  

    

Tuesday 24th May 2016 Tycroes Tycroes  EM  

 Llanedi Hendy  EM 

 Hendy Hendy  DS 

    

Tuesday 14th June 2016 Llanddarog Llanddarog WM 

 Bancffosfelen Pontyberem  WM 

 Pontyberem Pontyberem  WM 

 Y Fro, Llangyndeyrn Llangyndeyrn  WM 

 
  

P
age 194



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 

 
Date 
 

 
School  

 
Electoral Ward 

 
Category  

Friday 24th June 2016 Tremoilet, Pendine Laugharne Township EM 

 Llanmiloe Laugharne Township EM 

 Laugharne Laugharne Township EM  

 
 

 

P
age 195



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

8. Glossary of Terms  
 
2A (Secondary) – At least 80% of subjects apart from English and Welsh are taught 
only through the medium of Welsh to all pupils. One or two subjects are taught to 
some pupils in English or in both languages. 
 
2B (Secondary) – At least 80% of subjects (excluding Welsh and English) are 
taught through the medium of Welsh but are also taught through the medium of 
English. 
 
AB (Secondary) – At least 80% of subjects apart from English and Welsh are taught 
only through the medium of Welsh to all pupils. One or two subjects are taught to 
some pupils in English or in both languages. 
 
CB (Secondary) – A bilingual secondary school where 50-79% of subjects (ex. 
English & Welsh) are taught through the medium of Welsh but are also taught 
through the medium of English.   
 
CP School – Community Primary School 
 
DS (Dual-Stream Primary School) – Two types of provision exist side-by-side in 
these schools. Parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium or mainly 
English-medium provision which is usually delivered as in categories and 5 
respectively. Both Welsh and English are used in the day to day business of the 
school. The language of communication with the pupils is determined by the nature 
of the curricular provision, but in some schools high priority is given to creating a 
Welsh-language ethos throughout the school. The school communicates with 
parents in both languages.   
 
DS Unit – Democratic Services Unit  
 
E&C – Education & Children  
 
EBM – Executive Board Member  
 
EM (Primary) – Predominantly English medium primary school.  
 
EM (Secondary) – Predominantly English medium school where 1 or 2 subjects 
may be taught through the medium of Welsh as an option.   
 
ESTYN – Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales 
 
EW (Primary) – Predominantly English medium primary school but with significant 
use of Welsh. 
 
EW (Secondary) – Predominantly English medium secondary school with significant 
use of Welsh. 20-49 % of subjects are taught through the medium of Welsh but are 
also taught in English.  
 
RC – Roman Catholic  
 

  

Page 196



Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

RCP – Roman Catholic Primary  
 
TAF – Team Around the Family   
 
Transitional Primary School (TR) – Welsh medium with significant use of English 
where pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas of learning mainly 
through the medium of Welsh. Both languages are used in teaching at Key Stage 2 
but with greater emphasis on Welsh, so that Welsh is used as the medium of 
instruction for over half and up to 70% of the curriculum. Welsh is the language of 
the day to day business of the school. A high priority is given to creating a Welsh 
ethos. The school communicates with parents in both languages. Schools would 
usually only be in this category on a temporary basis.  
 
VAP School – Voluntary Aided Primary School   
 
VCP School – Voluntary Controlled Primary School 
 
WM (Primary) – All pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas of learning 
through the medium of Welsh. Welsh is the main teaching medium at Key Stage 2 
with at least 70% of the teaching through the medium of Welsh. English is 
introduced formally as a subject at Key Stage 2 and is taught through the medium 
of English, and English may occasionally be used for some aspects of some 
subjects. Welsh is the language of the day to day business of the school. Welsh is 
used as the language of communication with the pupils and for the school’s 
administration. The school communicates with parents in both languages. 
 
Ysgol Gyfun – Comprehensive School  
 
 
 
*Members are asked to note that the school capacities, pupil numbers and other 
details (e.g. head teachers) were correct at the time of the visits but that these can 
vary or change during the course of an academic year. 
 
**Language category definitions sourced from the Welsh Assembly Government’s 
‘Defining schools according to Welsh medium provision’ information booklet, 
published in October 2007.  

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 FORTHCOMING ITEMS
	6 TIC PROJECT UPDATE
	7 ERW BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17
	Report

	8 SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PANEL
	Report

	9 EDUCATION & CHILDREN SCRUTINY COMMITTEE SCHOOL VISIT ACTIVITY REPORT 2015/16
	Report


